
 

 
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 

Date: 
 

Monday, 12 September 2022 

Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

Council Chamber,  Moorlands House, Leek 

2 September 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

5. Declaration of Interests:  

 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

6. Minutes from the last meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel. (Pages 9 - 14) 

7. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

8. Work Programme (Pages 15 - 16) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 

9. Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update (verbal) - Ben Adams (6.15pm)  

10. Werrington Library & Wellbeing Centre (presentation) - Wendy Sandbrook, 
Wellbeing Coordinator. (6.45pm) (Pages 17 - 24) 

11. Energy Crisis - David Smith, Head of Communities and Climate Change (7.15pm) 
(Pages 25 - 84) 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



12. Climate Change and Council Buildings (LED Lighting) - Katy Webster, Head of 
Assets (7.45pm)  

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor D Shaw (Chair) Councillor L Swindlehurst (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor G Bentley Councillor A Hart 

Councillor I Herdman Councillor T Holmes 
Councillor K Hoptroff Councillor B A Hughes 

Councillor A Hulme Councillor B Johnson 
Councillor J Jones Councillor K Mills 
Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley 

Councillor P Routledge Councillor Routledge 
Councillor P Taylor Councillor N Yates 

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

MONDAY, 11 JULY 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor D Shaw (Chair)   
 

 Councillors A Hart, I Herdman, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, 
B Johnson, J Jones, T Riley, Routledge, P Routledge, 

L Swindlehurst and P Taylor. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors C Atkins, M Gledhill, J Porter, P Roberts, S Scalise and 

R Ward. 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillors N Yates 
 

10 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Atkins was substitute member for Councillor Yates. 

 
11 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 

DECIDED –  That the minutes of the meeting of the Community Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel held on 13 June 2022 be APPROVED as a correct 

record and signed by the Chair. 
 

12 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 
 

Although the Chair had not received prior notification of any urgent items, Councillor 
Atkins requested an update on the travellers currently on site at Brough Park. 
 

The Leader confirmed that this matter was being looked into and the relevant ward 
councillors would be kept informed. 

 
13 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 

 

Agenda No. Member Declaring 

Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Agenda Item 8 - Your 
Housing Group 

Performance Update 

Cllr A Hart Other – Is a relative of 
the YHG Customer 

Representative present 
at the meeting. 

 

14 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 
Question received from Councillor Hoptroff: 

 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 July 2022 
 

2 
 

Q1. “SMDC’s Tree Strategy was due for renewal at the start of this year (it lapsed at 

the end of last year and the last promised delivery date was March of this year 

(section 5.4 of Climate Change Plan). The Green Infrastructure 
Plan has not been put before Scrutiny since January 2021. When will there 
be further discussion of the strategy?” 

 
Response from Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change: 

The Council has an existing Tree Strategy, which is perhaps somewhat of a 
misnomer in that it is an operational policy that sets out how the Council manages 
trees. The existing “Tree Strategy” will be refreshed in the next 12 months in the light 

of a wider review of the tree service, at which point it will be more appropriately re-
titled.  

As Councillor Hoptroff points out, our Climate Change Plan includes a commitment 
to encourage tree planting and create a framework for the planting of new trees. At 
the time of writing the report, our approach was to have a separate Tree Strategy to 

deliver that commitment. However, following further consultation with Staffordshire 
Wildlife Trust, we now believe that the tree strategy should form part of an overall 

biodiversity strategy that emphasises the importance of all habitats. We are in the 
process of commissioning development of the biodiversity strategy – which we a 
going to call A Plan for Nature - with Staffordshire Wildlife Trust and they have 

promised a detailed, costed proposal by the end of July.  
  

 
15 WORK PROGRAMME (6.10PM) 

 

Councillor Swindlehurst – Vice-Chair, updated the Panel on the initial work carried 
out by A E Donate in relation to defibrillators in the District. An accurate list was 

being collated which would include whether the defibrillator was registered with the 
WMAS, any maintenance requirements and if funding could be sought from SMDC.  
 

Due to the cost of living crisis, Councillor Gledhill requested that an item on food 
banks was added to the Work Programme. 

 
The Chair was keen for members to hear from local groups to provide an 
interchange of ideas to help stimulate the voluntary sector. A suggestion was made 

for a representative from Werrington Community Library and Wellbeing Centre to 
attend the meeting scheduled for 12 September 2022 and for a representative from 

the Auctioneers Arms in Caverswall to attend a future meeting.  
 
The Democratic Services Team would contact Support Staffordshire to liaise with 

local groups to establish which organisations would like to attend a meeting of the 
Panel. For those that wished to attend, meetings would be organised around themes 

such as; Health and Wellbeing, Art and Culture etc. 
 
DECIDED:  

 
1) That the Work Programme be agreed, subject to an item on the foodbanks 

being added; 
2) For voluntary groups to be invited to attend future meetings of the Panel. 

 

 
 

 
 Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 July 2022 
 

3 
 

16 YOUR HOUSING GROUP 6 MONTH PERFORMANCE UPDATE - AARON 
HAMMERSLEY, HEAD OF HOUSING. (6.15PM) 

 

Members considered a briefing paper introduced by Dave Lovatt - Regional Housing 
Manager, which provided a performance and development update on YHG business 

areas identified in the legacy agreement and related to business activity between 
October 2021 and May 2022. Aaron Hamersley – Head of Housing , Paula Marshall 

Director of Housing and Customer Service and Conan McKinley - Director of Asset 
Strategy were present at the meeting. A customer representative was also present - 
Andrea Hampton. 

 
Topics covered within the report included: 

 
- Your Housing Group Response to Covid 19 
- Housing Management 

- Neighbourhood inspection and Customer Engagement Events 
- Money Advice Support 

- Lettings 
- Compliance 
- Development 

- Repairs and Maintenance 
- Asset improvement 

- Digital Engagement 
- Community Regeneration 
- Commercial update 

 
Members had the opportunity to ask questions and comment as follows:- 

 
Mill Street – It was reported that there was on an ongoing issue with fly-tipping at this 
site and the refuse bins needed to be made secure as non-residents were leaving 

waste there. Fly-tipped waste had recently been removed and as part of priority 
neighbourhood work, the issue around the bins was being looked at in conjunction 

with the Belle Vue Flats. Councillors were welcome to attend a meeting on 14 July 
2022 on site with the contractor to look at designs and listen to the view of residents. 
 

Money advice support – Members were pleased this service was provided given 
little-face-to face advice was available. 

 
Well Street, Cheadle – At present YHG were still exploring options for this site and 
the Panel would be kept informed when further details had been confirmed.  

 
Hammersley Haye Garages –. Further work was required in relation to the garages, 

a steering group had been set up and it was anticipated that further information 
would be available to Panel next time YHG were in attendance.  
 

As part of the legacy agreement, members were keen to see some new properties 
built in the District.  Colleagues in the Development Team at YHG would be able to 

provide this information after the meeting.  
 
Shops on Mill Street – Works had ceased but assurance was given that the  work 

would be completed by the end of July 2022. In particular concerns were raised in 
relation to the dropped kerbs and raised man holes. 

 
Page 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 July 2022 
 

4 
 

Average re-let time of 44 days – In response to query around staffing issues, it was 
explained that not enough resource was allocated to emergency repairs to keep up 

with the demand for service.  Therefore 12 staff were redeployed from the Void 
Team to the Repairs Team. The staff had now returned to their usual employment. 
There was still a backlog but it was decided that customers currently residing in 

properties which required repairs were a priority to the organisation.  
 

Response times for emergency repairs  – A councillor had previously been assured 
the response time was 4 hours and gave an example of a vulnerable customer that 
had experienced reoccurring issues with heating and hot water which had not been 

resolved within the given time. Due to this, written clarification of the response time 
was requested and for this information to be distributed to the YHG call handlers 

 
In addition to this, a case which involved an issue with a serious water leak was 
described to the Panel. YHG were aware of this particular case and advised that the 

customer would receive a welfare check. Any details in relation to specific cases 
would be provided to YHG after the meeting. 

 
Customer satisfaction – Although 92% satisfaction was considered to be good 
across the industry, a member of the Panel was of the opinion that this should be 

higher a rate. 
 

Looked after children aged 16 – It was confirmed that the allocations policy included 
special criteria for young people and they were not limited to be housed in one 
property in the area. The Officer offered to provide more insight into this directly with 

the Councillor at a convenient time.  
 

The Chair thanked the representatives for attending the meeting. 
 
DECIDED: That the performance update be noted. 

 
17 SMDC CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE. (6:45PM) 

 

Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, introduced a report which 
updated Members on the progress towards meeting the Council’s Climate Change 

targets and to provided detail of next steps. 
 

Following the declaration of a climate emergency in July 2019, the Council had 
developed action plans to deliver an ambition for the district to reach net zero carbon 
emissions by 2030. The final part of the plan was agreed in December 2021. This 

set out an approach following seven strategic themes. The Annual Report appended 
to the report communicated the development so far and future steps to achieve the 

ambitions.  
 
The highlights included: 

 

 Introduction of Moorlands Green Network, Parish Council Climate Change 

Forum, developing a youth engagement strategy.  

 Climate Change Fund 

 Established a Climate Change and Biodiversity Delivery Group 

 Employed a dedicated Climate Change and Biodiversity Officer, shared 
across the Alliance. 

 Planted 22 community orchards. Page 6



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 July 2022 
 

5 
 

 Trialled and subsequentially introduced using waste hydrogenated vegetable 
oil in Council fleet vehicles.   

 Trained Heads of Service and Climate Champions in Carbon Literacy, 
resulting in Bronze Carbon Literacy accreditation for the Council.  

 Completed energy and water reviews of all Council buildings to identify 
improvements to performance 

 

Members were pleased to receive a written report but there was uncertainty around 
the Council meeting its targets due to a lack of milestones. The Panel was advised 

that it wasn’t always possible to measure the specific impact of measures put in 
place. A few omissions were highlighted by members such as; renewable energy 
generation by the Council, retro-fitting of houses, assistance with the cost of living 

and the lack of a supplementary planning document regarding sustainable housing. 
The adoption of a supplementary planning document would be included in the next 

climate change update to the Panel. 
 
Discussion took place around the possibility of the Climate Change Sub-Groups to 

be re-convened and a request was made for the actual numbers of trees planted 
rather than a percentage. 

 
In response to a query in relation to the outcomes of the Energy Audit of the 
Council’s buildings, members were assured that key findings had been established 

and the Head of the Assets Team would be asked to provide a report on the Asset 
Management Plan at the next meeting of the Panel. Members were particular 

interested to hear about the installation of LED lightbulbs, solar panels and EV 
charging points. 
 

A member of the Panel asked for the Council to be mindful of the amount of money it 
spent to achieve its ambitions around climate change. 

 
To conclude, as part of the regular Climate Change Update, members wished to see 
figures and timescales on matters which were within the Council’s control.  

 
DECIDED: The update be received. 

 
 

18 SMDC REFRESHED ENVIRONMENT ENFORCEMENT POLICY. (7:15PM) 

 

David Smith – Head of Communities and Climate Change, presented a report on an 

updated Corporate Enforcement Policy which set out the Council’s general approach 
to enforcement. It also included a revised policy on enforcement of environmental 
crimes. 

 
The Council engaged in regulatory enforcement when delivering certain functions 

including environmental health, environmental crime, licensing, development control, 
housing and finance.  
 

The Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy was intended to be an over-arching 
document which can be supplemented by enforcement policies specific to each area 

of the Council’s enforcement activity.  
 
As a whole, the Council’s enforcement policies were a guide for businesses and 

individuals who may be subject to regulation. The documents set out what can 
expected from the Council’s regulatory services, as well as providing the public with 

Page 7



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 July 2022 
 

6 
 

a statement of the Council’s intent on enforcement. To this end the policies, once 
approved, would be publicised on the Council’s website and elsewhere as 

appropriate. 
 
The Council had reviewed and updated its Corporate Enforcement Policy, to reflect 

revised regulatory guidance, and a copy could be found at Appendix A to the report. 
 

The Council’s Environmental Enforcement Policy was adopted in 2017. The 
Corporate Plan 2019-2023 committed to reviewing the policy as a means of taking 
steps to further reduce dog fouling and littering. 

 
The revised Alliance wide policy, which could be found at Appendix B, confirmed the 

Council’s triple-track approach to responding to environmental crimes that consists 
of Education, Enforcement and Cleansing. The policy recognised the Council’s 
changed operating model following the creation of Alliance Environmental Services 

(AES) and the role of Council services in delivering the policy following internal 
restructuring. 

 
A member of the Panel commented on the excellent level of service they had 
received from the Enforcement Officers at the Council.  

 
DECIDED:  

 
1) The Panel RECOMMENDED that Cabinet APPROVED the revised Corporate 

Enforcement Policy at Appendix A; 

 
2) The Panel RECOMMENDED that Cabinet APPROVED the revised Policy on 

Enforcement of Environmental Crimes provided at Appendix B. 
 
 

 
 

The meeting closed at 8.03 pm 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 8



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel Meeting held on 27 June 
2022 

 
Present: Bernard Peters (Chairman) 

 
 Jackie Barnes 

Adrian Bowen 

Jamie Checkland (Substitute) 
Ann Edgeller 

 

Tony Holmes 
Philip Hudson 

Martin Summers 
Keith Walker 

 
 
Also in attendance: Ben Adams, Helen Fisher, Ralph Butler, Emma Christmas 

(Observer representing the ETAP).    
 

 
Apologies: Richard Cox, Gill Heesom, Bryan Jones and Roger Lees 

 
PART ONE 

 
1. Appointment of Chairman 

 

RESOLVED: That Councillor Bernard Peters be appointed Chairman of the 

Panel for the ensuring year. 
 
2. Appointment of Vice Chairman 

 

RESOLVED: That Councillor Richard Cox be appointed Vice Chairman of the 
Panel for the ensuring year. 
 
3. Declarations of interest 

 

None were made at the meeting. 
 
4. Minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2022 

 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Panel meeting held on 25 April 2022 

be approved and signed by the Chairman. 
 
5. Questions to the PFCC from Members of the Public 

 

The Panel considered the questions ask by members of the public and the 

Commissioners written response.  Neither of the members of the public were 
able to attend the meeting. 

 
RESOLVED: That the questions asked and the Commissioners written 

response be noted.  
 
6. Decisions published by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner (PFCC) 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

- 2 - 
 

Details were submitted of decisions published by the Commissioner since the 
last Panel meeting.  

  

1. Fire and Rescue - 001 Purchase of Fire applications – enhanced rescue 

pumps. 
2. Police and Crime – 001 Additional capital vehicle funding. 

 
The decision to purchase additional vehicles was not questioned but 

members asked if there had been an increase in cost due to inflation and if 
so had this meant that funding had been diverted from other budgets to pay 
for them?  In response, the Commissioner explained that the capital reserve 

was reasonably strong and had covered the cost.  There would be an MTFS 
update report to the Panel in October which would go into more detail on 

budgets and reserves. 
 

RESOLVED – That the decisions be noted.  
 
7. Commissioners Annual Report 

 

The Chairman expressed his concern that the annual report had been 

circulated after the publication of the agenda and this may affect the Panels 
ability to question the Commissioner.   

 
Concern was also raised on the Panels ability to monitor the recent 

inspection report developments/ progress when the information was not 
published on the Commissioners web site to enable them to see progress.   
It was acknowledged that Chief Constable performance and action plans 

were normally on the website, but this had not been available to view for a 
number of weeks. 

 
The Commissioner apologised for the lateness of the report.  A draft had 

been emailed to members prior to the meeting but was not on the panel’s 
public website.  He explained that performance information would normally 

be available on his web site, and he would investigate the issue. 
 
The Annual report was presented by the Commissioner who explained the 

progress made against his strategic plans.   
 

The recent HMICFRS inspections which had highlighted some failings in the 
system, had been included in the report and performance against 

improvements was being measured and was being made public through the 
Performance meetings held with the Chief Constable.  Public Meetings - 

Staffordshire Commissioner (staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk) 
 
 

The Commissioner highlighted the following form the report: 

Page 10

https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/transparency/public-meetings/
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/transparency/public-meetings/


 

- 3 - 
 

 The operating models and transformation programme would be 
monitored, and results evidenced. Update reports and the next Annual 

report would show the progress. 
 Additional funds had been secured for Safer Streets and Safer Women 

at Night Funds. 
 Clear commitment had been made through funding for Community 

Safety Partnerships; Victim Support Services; and services to tackle 
Anti-Social Behaviour; and Hate Crime Services. 

 All commissioning arrangements were being reviewed. 
 
The Commissioner thanked the Fire and Rescue and Police Services, his staff 

and his Deputy for their support over the past months and helping to provide 
services and to prepare strategies and documents such as the Annual report. 

 
Following the Commissioners presentation and questions from the Panel, the 

following information was shared with the Panel.  This was in addition to that 
provided in the written report: 

 
 The Panel wanted to see performance against other Police authorities 

and Key Performance Indicators available on the Commissioners web 

site.  The Chairman informed the Panel that unfortunately this was not 
currently available, and this problem needed to be addressed. 

 It was hoped that the new Local Policing Model, which went live on the 
day of this meeting, should help to increase crime prevention as 

officers would have less distance to travel to attend incidents.  It was 
acknowledged that it may take up to 12 months to gather data to 

demonstrate effectiveness. 
 Following a question on how the effectiveness of the extra funding for 

Safer streets would be measured, the Commissioner explained that he 

expected to see an increase in the night economy; an improved feeling 
of safety and less street crime.  The Government collected data on how 

the funding had been spent and set targets to demonstrate how 
effective it had been. 

 Road Safety was an important issue which affected all areas of the 
county.  The Deputy Commissioner gave a brief update on activities 

under way to improve car and road safety.  Helen Fisher was invited to 
attend the next meeting to brief the Panel on what work was taking 
place. 

 It was felt that the performance of the Contact Centre remains a 
priority but didn’t seem to be improving.  In response, the 

Commissioner stated that it remained a top priority, but it was taking 
time to train officers; a new Chief Superintendent experienced in 

contact services had been appointed; the service had undergone a 
recent peer review; and other force areas had visited to assist with 

best practise among other initiatives.  Improvement needed to be seen 
and would be reported to the Chief Constable Performance meetings 
and would be included in all performance reports to this Panel. 

Page 11



 

- 4 - 
 

 Thanks were expressed to the Speed Watch team, for all the work they 
do. 

 Communicating with the Commissioner’s office via email had been an 
issue for one member and needed to be addressed. 

 The panel felt that the statistics and data in the report were interesting 
but they were not set in any context, so it was difficult to know if they 

were impressive compared to other forces or set against targets.  This 
was comment was acknowledged. 

 
Members of the Panel felt strongly that the public needed to be able to see 
the effects of the any changes made and information needed to be available 

on the web site.   
 

RESOLVED: 
a) That the report be received 

i. That the Panel respond formally to the Annual report including 
the feedback provided during the meeting, particularly relating to 

the Commissioners public web pages and information available to 
the public. 

ii. That the Deputy Commissioner provide an update on the Safer 

Roads scheme at the next meeting of the Panel. 
 
8. Home Office Grant 2021/22 

 

The Panel received the annual report which provided information on the 
Home Office grant allocated to the Host authority which was intended to 
meet the costs of the administrative support and management services of 

the panel.  The Grant allocation for 2022/23 had not yet been received. 

 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 
9. Annual Report on the Handling of Complaints against the Commissioner 
2021/22 

 

The Panel received the annual report which provided information on the 
number of complaints referred to the panel which relate to the personal 

conduct of the Commissioner and/or his Deputy. 
 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 
10. Questions to the PFCC by Panel Members 

 

Members of the Panel questioned/sought the views of the Commissioner on 

the following issues and received the responses indicated:  
 

Page 12



 

- 5 - 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Chairman 

 
 

Question  Response  

Would strikes by Barristers 

and or Court staff have an 

effect of the service? 
 

The Commissioner felt that it 

would probably increase the 

backlog of cases waiting to be 

dealt with. 

The Fire and Rescue service 

carry out inspections of high-

rise flats.  How was this being 

monitored to ensure they are 

taking place. 

The results of a recent HMICFRS 

inspection report was due to be 

published within the next few 

weeks and this was one of the 

things looked at.  This 

information would be included 

in the Commissioners 

Performance meetings with the 

Chief Fire Officer and would be 

provided to the Panel for 

information.   

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2022/23 

 
Date Items for Agenda  

13 June 2022   

 Beat the Cold   

11 July 2022   
 Your Housing Group 6 monthly update  

 Climate Change Strategy 6 monthly update  
 Refreshed Environment Enforcement Policy  

12 Sep 2022   
 Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  

 Werrington Library & Wellbeing Centre   
 Response to the Energy Crisis  

 LED Lighting in Council Buildings  
14 Nov 2022   

 Climate Change Annual Update  
 Food Banks – Andrew Scott, Area Manager Trussell Trust 

& representatives from Leek and Cheadle 
 

 Moorlands Home Link – Sharon Ball  
16 Jan 2023   

 Your Housing 6 monthly update  

 CAB Annual Update  

 Biddulph Youth and Community Zone – Antony 
Capostagno      

 

13 March 
2023 

  

 Local Policing Team Annual Update (TBC)  

 Fire & Rescue Service Annual Update (TBC)  

  

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually and Additional 

Items 

Status Update 

Defibrillator maintenance  Information is currently being gathered by Cllr Swindlehurst 
with a report to follow. A verbal update will be provided at the 
meeting on 14.11.22 

Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  Invited to attend September 2022 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 8



 

Local Policing Team Annual Update  Scheduled to attend March 2023 
Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update  Scheduled to attend July 2022 

Fire & Rescue Service Annual Update  Scheduled to attend March 2023 
Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update  Scheduled to attend Jan 2023 

Climate Change Strategy 6 Monthly and Annual Update  July 2022 and Nov 2022 
Community & Voluntary Sector Post Covid-19 Recovery Activity   

  

P
age 16



WERRINGTON COMMUNITY 
VOLUNTEER GROUP

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 10



Background       
1. In 2008 two residents, Jean and Betty, undertook consultation as to what developments 

residents would like 
2. Others joined them to help to deliver realistic initiatives forming a small group which 

became the Werrington Community Volunteer Group covering:-
• A quarterly Village Life Magazine
• The monthly Werrington Lottery
• An annual Scarecrow Event 
• The annual Christmas lights switch-on
• The annual Poppy Installation and Remembrance Sunday afternoon tea
• The Children & Young Persons Support Group providing a weekly youth club
• The Kids2Kidz initiative supporting distressed families in the Staffordshire Moorlands
• Werrington in Bloom

P
age 18



From then to today
1. In 2015 Staffordshire County Council (SCC) announced the plan to move 23 of the 45 County 

Managed Libraries into community management
2. We submitted a successful bid to take over management of the Werrington Library because of:-
• The loss of Library Services
• The loss of the only public photocopier and publicly accessible computers in the Village
• A vision to develop a Community Hub
3.  We attended a planning meeting with all other interested community groups in October 2015
4. In North Staffordshire just Werrington and Blythe Bridge were in the first tranche (2016) 
5. Werrington became a Community Managed Library (CML) on 14 May 2016 
5.   The renamed Werrington Library & Wellbeing Centre is now the base for all of our activities      

P
age 19



How we operate
1. The Werrington Community Volunteer Group (WCVG) is the over-arching organisation and has a 

monthly committee meeting with 7 members. It oversees all initiatives other than the most high profile, 
the Werrington Community Library & Wellbeing Centre (WCL&WBC)

2. This too has monthly committee meetings, having 9 members and a separate constitution. There is a lot 
of commonality between the two committees based on a core group of people

3. Both monthly committee meetings focus on progress and exception reporting
4. Being a registered charity, 5 of the WCL&WBC committee members are also the Trustees
5. There is no hierarchy in either group, all volunteers have equal status and scope to be “leaders” for 

projects/initiatives
6. Grant funding is only used for capital projects and not on-going revenue/operating costs. 
7. We did utilise Covid-specific monies for a bespoke Covid Response Support Programme

which provided; counselling, therapeutic art, resource sign-posting, and respite care

P
age 20



Developing the Wellbeing Programme
1. The adjoining former Children’s Centre was only used on one afternoon per week for a Baby Clinic 
2. Consequently, we developed a programme to cover a range of health and wellbeing events, support 

activities and advice sessions.
3. A garden area at the front was put in with the help of the Youth Offending Institution and funded by 

ASDA. This was recently repurposed to a Garden of Reflection
4. We added a storage unit on spare ground at the back to house all of our equipment and supplies, 

funded by the (then) Big Lottery with help from the Lovell Homes Community Fund
5. Due to the success of the Programme, more accommodation was required to continue expansion. 

This led to the Garden Therapy Lodge development with 3 lodges also at the back – 2 for 
meeting/activity rooms and 1 as a dementia/disabled-friendly toilet facility

6. A patio area, artificial turf, hanging baskets and pots continue the horticultural theme
7. The project was funded by the National Lottery Reaching Communities Fund and the 

Disability Facilities Grant and led to the WCL&WBC charitable status  

P
age 21



Wellbeing Programme content
1. Is informed by Patient Participation Group (where possible)
2. Utilises our contacts,  ideas and priorities
3. Is enhanced by suggestions from, and awareness raising by, the Village Surgery

P
age 22



Highlights
1. We were granted the Queen’s Award in 2018 following a nomination from the Village Surgery
2. The expansion of the facilities - the site is now at full capacity
3. As at end of August, we have delivered over 2,600 sessions involving a range of providers- statutory, 

voluntary and independent
4. We get positive feedback from users and providers
5. We have had tremendous support from all staff at the Village Surgery 
6. We have increased Library membership from 800 to 5,000 despite national decline
7. A Community Shop was established with donated items and has expanded over time
8. Volunteers find it rewarding and supportive, not something that we had initially considered.
9. We have links with the Village Hall to offer a comprehensive programme - and further parking
10. We also link to Werrington Primary School  in terms of the physical environment, which has led to 

grassroots football, coaching and walking football
11. We were the CML Representative for Staffordshire County Council submission – Local 

Government Chronicle Council of the Year Awards 2022. (SCC was one of 5 shortlisted)

P
age 23



Finally…
1. Get in touch
2. Come and visit
3. Please help yourself to a copy of our Summer 2022 Village Life     
Magazine, September Wellbeing Programme and the list of 
activities held to date

P
age 24



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

12 September 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

SMDC Response to the Energy Crisis  
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Ross Ward - Portfolio Holder for 
Communities 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

David Smith - Head of Communities and 
Climate Change 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
All 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Fuel Bank Foundation: Fuel Crisis 

Report 2022; Appendix B: Turning Down the Heat, CAB report on the effect 
of the cost of living crisis in North Staffordshire; Appendix C: ECO 4 
Statement of Intent 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To consider the support which the Council currently provides to residents in the 

face of the cost-of-living crisis, and specifically rising energy costs and the predicted 
future energy price increases in October 2022. To consider options for the provision 

of additional support to residents. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2 That the Panel supports the following recommendations to the Cabinet: 

2.1 Notes the action being taken to respond to the cost-of-living crisis 

2.2 Supports the creation of a Fuel Bank for Staffordshire Moorlands to 
support those residents paying for their household energy via a pre-
payment meter and who are experiencing fuel poverty. 

2.3 Approves the ECO4 statement of intent and delivery of the scheme in 
collaboration with Beat the Cold. 

2.4 Approves further conversations with the North Staffordshire Financial 
Inclusion Group about working together to develop an affordable credit 
model that includes Staffordshire Moorlands. 

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



  

3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The ONS Opinions and Lifestyle Survey (covering 16 to 27 March 2022) 

showed that nearly 9 in 10 (87%) reported that their cost of living had 
increased. The energy price cap increased by 54% in April 2022 with 

further increases due in October 2022 and January 2023. 

3.2 Business organisations have also expressed concern regarding rising 
energy costs. The Confederation of British Industry warn that “many 

viable companies face "distress" unless urgent action is taken by the 
government…” It published survey data that showed 69% of firms expect 

energy bills to rise in the next three months, and nearly a third expect 
increases of more than 30%. 

3.3 The Council funds Citizens Advice to provide general advice, 

homelessness prevention advice, and money and debt advice for tenants 
or home owners at risk of losing their home.  

3.4 The District Council is part of the Staffordshire Warmer Homes Scheme 
(SWHS), which focuses on installing green heating solutions, insulating 
homes to make them more energy efficient and providing energy saving 

advice. The Council also commissions Beat The Cold directly to provide 
additional energy advice and support for our residents. 

3.5 The Council has also commissioned Support Staffordshire to provide a 
Community Vulnerability Network to bring together voluntary and 
community groups in the Staffordshire Moorlands that play a key role in 

addressing the issues that face the most vulnerable in the community, 
including loneliness and isolation; food poverty; and financial exclusion. 
This provides an opportunity for sharing information on both current 

problems and potential solutions. 

3.6 The Council is proposing to work with the Fuel Bank Foundation to 

introduce a Fuel Bank for the district, to work with Beat The Cold to 
deliver the ECO 4 Flex Scheme, and is investigating further ways of 
supporting people who may otherwise fall foul of illegal money lenders. 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The report assists the Council to meet Aim 1 of the Corporate Plan (To help 
create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and 
work). Measures to support businesses links to the delivery of Aim 3 (To help 

create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 
villages). The measures to improve the energy efficiency of homes supports 

delivery of Aim 4 (To protect and improve the environment and respond to the 
climate emergency). 
 

 

Page 26



  

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 The report sets out the current position and initial steps that the Council 

intends to take; however, it is important that the Council adopts a flexible 
approach to emerging issues and opportunities. 

 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 
The cost of living crisis can make people more vulnerable to illegal 
money lenders who seek to take advantage of vulnerable people. 

We propose to continue to wok with the Illegal Money Lending 
Team to tackle this problem. 

 
6.2 Workforce 

 

None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
None 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

 

The Council is proposing to reallocate £15,000 from its Community 
Support budget towards establishing a Fuel Bank in the District. 

 
6.5 Legal 

 

None 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
Measures to improve the efficiency of homes and reduce energy 

bills can also have a positive effect on reducing carbon emissions. 
 

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
 

None 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None 

 
Neil Rodgers 

Executive Director (Place) 

 

Page 27



  

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/

articles/energypricesandtheireffectonhouseholds/2022-
02-01 

https://www.cornwall-insight.com/cornwall-insight-

comments-on-the-announcement-of-the-october-price-
cap/ 

https://www.cornwall-insight.com/price-cap-forecasts-for-

january-rise-to-over-4200-as-wholesale-prices-surge-
again-and-ofgem-revises-cap-methodology/ 

https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-

energy-price-
cap/#:~:text=As%20you%20can%20see%20from,per%20
day%20to%2045.34p. 

https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/information-consumers/energy-
advice-households/check-if-energy-price-cap-affects-you 

Who needs debt advice in 2022? | The Money and 

Pensions Service 

Beat the blues by focusing on financial wellbeing | The 
Money and Pensions Service 

https://foodfoundation.org.uk/news/food-prices-tracking-
august-update 

https://www.kantar.com/uki/inspiration/fmcg/2022-wp-

grocery-price-inflation-hits-new-peak-as-shoppers-
navigate-533-annual-increase 

https://www.trusselltrust.org/news-and-blog/latest-

stats/end-year-stats/ 

https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-
briefings/cbp-8585/ 

https://www.foodaidnetwork.org.uk/ifan-data-since-covid-
19 

https://www.centreforsocialjustice.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2022/03/CSJ-Illegal-lending-paper.pdf 

https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-
06/ECO4%20Guidance%20Local%20Authority%20Admin

istration.pdf 

https://sben.co.uk/funded-support/lcbep/ 

 

David Smith 

Head of Communities and Climate Change 
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 28

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/articles/energypricesandtheireffectonhouseholds/2022-02-01
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/articles/energypricesandtheireffectonhouseholds/2022-02-01
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/inflationandpriceindices/articles/energypricesandtheireffectonhouseholds/2022-02-01
https://www.cornwall-insight.com/cornwall-insight-comments-on-the-announcement-of-the-october-price-cap/
https://www.cornwall-insight.com/cornwall-insight-comments-on-the-announcement-of-the-october-price-cap/
https://www.cornwall-insight.com/cornwall-insight-comments-on-the-announcement-of-the-october-price-cap/
https://www.cornwall-insight.com/price-cap-forecasts-for-january-rise-to-over-4200-as-wholesale-prices-surge-again-and-ofgem-revises-cap-methodology/
https://www.cornwall-insight.com/price-cap-forecasts-for-january-rise-to-over-4200-as-wholesale-prices-surge-again-and-ofgem-revises-cap-methodology/
https://www.cornwall-insight.com/price-cap-forecasts-for-january-rise-to-over-4200-as-wholesale-prices-surge-again-and-ofgem-revises-cap-methodology/
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap/#:~:text=As%20you%20can%20see%20from,per%20day%20to%2045.34p
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap/#:~:text=As%20you%20can%20see%20from,per%20day%20to%2045.34p
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap/#:~:text=As%20you%20can%20see%20from,per%20day%20to%2045.34p
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap/#:~:text=As%20you%20can%20see%20from,per%20day%20to%2045.34p
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/information-consumers/energy-advice-households/check-if-energy-price-cap-affects-you
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/information-consumers/energy-advice-households/check-if-energy-price-cap-affects-you
https://moneyandpensionsservice.org.uk/2022/02/23/who-needs-debt-advice-in-2022/
https://moneyandpensionsservice.org.uk/2022/02/23/who-needs-debt-advice-in-2022/
https://moneyandpensionsservice.org.uk/2022/01/17/beat-the-blues-by-focusing-on-financial-wellbeing/
https://moneyandpensionsservice.org.uk/2022/01/17/beat-the-blues-by-focusing-on-financial-wellbeing/
https://www.kantar.com/uki/inspiration/fmcg/2022-wp-grocery-price-inflation-hits-new-peak-as-shoppers-navigate-533-annual-increase
https://www.kantar.com/uki/inspiration/fmcg/2022-wp-grocery-price-inflation-hits-new-peak-as-shoppers-navigate-533-annual-increase
https://www.kantar.com/uki/inspiration/fmcg/2022-wp-grocery-price-inflation-hits-new-peak-as-shoppers-navigate-533-annual-increase
https://www.trusselltrust.org/news-and-blog/latest-stats/end-year-stats/
https://www.trusselltrust.org/news-and-blog/latest-stats/end-year-stats/
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8585/
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8585/
https://www.foodaidnetwork.org.uk/ifan-data-since-covid-19
https://www.foodaidnetwork.org.uk/ifan-data-since-covid-19
https://www.centreforsocialjustice.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/CSJ-Illegal-lending-paper.pdf
https://www.centreforsocialjustice.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/CSJ-Illegal-lending-paper.pdf
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/ECO4%20Guidance%20Local%20Authority%20Administration.pdf
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/ECO4%20Guidance%20Local%20Authority%20Administration.pdf
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2022-06/ECO4%20Guidance%20Local%20Authority%20Administration.pdf
https://sben.co.uk/funded-support/lcbep/


  

7. Detail 

 

Energy Prices 

7.1 The energy regulator Ofgem establishes an energy price cap that sets the 
maximum amount that energy suppliers can charge for their energy. The 

energy price cap is designed to protect consumers from short-term changes in 
prices and was adjusted every six months, with the next price cap change in 
October 2022. However, this will change to four times a year from October 

2022 with subsequent changes in January, April, July and October 2023. The 
price cap was introduced in January 2019 followed concerns that many 

people, particularly those who did not switch supplier to find cheaper deals, 
were paying too much for their energy.  

7.2 The energy price cap applies to those on a default energy tariff, regardless of 

how the bills are paid. The price cap does not apply to those: 

• on a fixed-term energy tariff (i.e. a tariff with a fixed end date), or 

• on a tariff that is exempt from the price cap, for example, some green 
and special time of use tariffs.  

7.3 The cap limits the amount that a supplier can charge for their default tariff. It 

includes: 

• The standing charge (a fixed daily amount you have to pay for energy, 

regardless of how much energy you use). 

• The price for each unit of electricity and gas (measured in pence per 
kilowatt hours, or p/kWh). 

7.4 The energy cost is based largely on wholesale energy prices and these prices 
have risen sharply. Ofgem announced on 26 August 2022 that the energy 
price cap will increase to £3,549 per year for dual fuel for an average 

household from 1 October 2022. Cornwall Insight currently forecasts a further 
increase in the energy price cap to £5,387 in early 2023. This reflects the 

impact of an increasingly volatile energy market, including ongoing uncertainty 
regarding Russian gas flows into continental Europe, driving the rise in 
wholesale energy prices. There is some hope that the market will stabilise and 

before the high wholesale prices become “baked in” to the January 2023 price 
cap. 

Average price cap unit rates Customer with typical usage, paying by 

direct debit* 

 Last price cap period 

(1 Apr – 30 Sept 2022) 

Current Price Cap Period 

(1 Oct – 31 Dec 2022) 

Electricity £0.28 per kWh 
 

Daily standing charge: £0.45 

£0.52 per kWh 
 

Daily standing charge: £0.46 

Page 29



  

Gas £0.07 per kWh 

 
Daily standing charge: £0.27 

£0.15 per kWh 

 
Daily standing charge: £0.28 

*Rates are averages and will vary by region, payment method and meter type. Source: Ofgen 
website 

 

Cornwall Insight’s default tariff cap forecasts, £ per year including VAT 
(dual fuel, direct debit customer, national average figures) 

 

QUARTERLY Q1 2023 CI 
Forecast 

Q2 2023 CI 
Forecast 

Q3 2023 CI 
Forecast 

Q4 2023 CI 
Forecast 

Electricity £2,505.14 £2,834.19 £2,445.11 £2,464.99 

Gas £2,881.57 £3,782.19 £3,452.01 £3,422.32 

TOTAL £5.386.71 £6,616.37 £5,8917.12 £5,887.31 

Source: Cornwall Insight (26 August 2022).  
 

7.5 The table below summarises the average impact of the price cap for people on 

dual-fuel who pay by direct debit. The predictions become less certain over 
time but currently show that the price cap will continually to rise until the 

middle of 2023. It is important to recognise that the prepay price cap is about 
2% higher, and 7% higher for those who pay each month after getting a bill. 
This differential is expected to continue. 

Price Cap Period Impact (dual-fuel direct-debit cap) 

1 Oct 2021 – 31 March 2022 12% increase: someone on typical 

use paid £1,277 per year 

1 Apr 2022 to 30 September 2022 54% increase: £1,971 per year on 
typical use 

1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022 80% increase: £3,549 on typical use 

1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023 

Prediction 

52% increase: £5,387 on typical use 

1 April 2023 to 30 June 2023 

Prediction 

23% increase: £6,616 on typical use 

1 July 2023 to 30 September 2023 

Prediction 

DOWN 11%: £5,897 per year on 

typical use 

Source: www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap 

Page 30

http://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/what-is-the-energy-price-cap


  

8 Social Impacts 

National 

8.1 The ONS Opinions and Lifestyle Survey (covering 16 to 27 March 2022) 

showed that: 

• nearly 9 in 10 (87%) reported that their cost of living had increased; 

• among these adults, the most common reasons reported were an 
increase in the price of food (88%), an increase in gas or electricity bills 
(83%) and an increase in the price of fuel (77%) 

• among those who pay energy bills, 4 in 10 (43%) said they found it very 
or somewhat difficult to pay their bills 

• among those who said they have gas or electricity supplied to their 
home, 6% reported they were behind on their gas or electricity bills. 

8.2 These data were collected between 16 and 27 March 2022, prior to the 

increase in the domestic energy tariff cap on 1 April 2022, and it should be 
recognised that there are strong seasonal spending patterns relating to gas 

and electricity. 

8.3 While rising energy prices will affect most households across the country, they 
are more likely to disproportionately affect those on the lowest incomes. In the 

financial year ending in 2020: 

• the poorest 10% of households spent more than half (54%) of their 

average weekly expenditure (£298.90) on essentials such as housing 
(including electricity and gas), food and transport 

• those in the richest 10%, in comparison, spend 42% of their average 

weekly spend of £1,073.20 on the same essentials.  

8.4 Spending on gas and electricity is also higher as a proportion of disposable 
income for those in the poorest 10% of households (7%) compared to those in 

the richest 10% of households (2%). As a result, an increase in energy prices 
disproportionately impacts low-income households.  

8.5 Fuel poverty in England is measured using the Low Income Low Energy 
Efficiency (LILEE) indicator. Under this indicator, a household is considered to 
be fuel poor if: 

 they are living in a property with a fuel poverty energy efficiency rating of 
band D or below 

and 

 when they spend the required amount to heat their home, they are left 
with a residual income below the official poverty line 

Page 31



  

8.6 There are 3 important elements in determining whether a household is fuel 
poor: 

 household income 

 household energy requirements 

 fuel prices 

8.7 The 2020 fuel poverty dataset and the associated English Housing Survey 
(EHS) data behind the statistics will be available on the UK data archive later 
in 2022.(www.gov.uk/government/collections/fuel-poverty-statistics). 

8.8 National figures from the Money and Pensions Service (MaPS) showed that in 
August-September 2021, 16% (around 8.5 million) of the UK adult population 

needed debt advice. A further 20% (around 10.6 million) were considered to 
be ‘at risk’ and required support so that their situation does not worsen. People 
who need debt advice are more likely to be aged under 35 and have children.  

People from ethnic minority communities are more likely to need debt advice. 

8.9 The MaPS Financial Wellbeing Survey confirms that people who have ‘high 

financial wellbeing’ (feel secure and in control of their money) are amongst the 
most content in society. However, the survey found that across the UK 16 
million adults (31%) have low financial wellbeing, and more than a third (36%) 

admit to feeling worried when thinking about money matters. The research 
shows that raising financial wellbeing has a positive impact on mental health 

and has wider economic benefits for society as a whole. This is reflected in 
local figures which show that 88% of Fuel Bank clients (below) reported an 
improvement in their mental well-being after receiving support and 87% 

reported improvements in their physical health. 

8.10 The Council has identified a risk of increased rent arrears in both the social 
and private sectors leading to homelessness and added pressures on the local 

authorities. This is reflected in a report produced by the CAB on the impact of 
the cost of living crisis in North Staffordshire (Appendix B). 

 
8.11 The Food Standards Agency, with Ipsos Mori and Bright Harbour, carried out 

research in England, Wales and Northern Ireland to monitor the experience 
and behaviours of consumers when it comes to key food risks during the 
pandemic. The COVID-19 consumer tracker ran for 19 months (19 waves) 

from April 2020 to October 2021, resulting in three reports (waves 1-5, 1-12 
and 1-19). The research showed that: 

• From April 2020 to October 2021, the proportion of respondents skipping 
meals or cutting the size of meals because they did not have enough 
money to buy food had significantly increased 

• Significantly more respondents reported using food banks at the end of 
the tracker compared to the start. 

• In October 2021, 24% of participants reported having a concern about 
the food they eat.  By the end of the tracker, 1 in 5 respondents 
expressed a food related concern with ‘the healthiness of food in my 

Page 32

http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/fuel-poverty-statistics


  

diet', ‘the price of food’ and ‘food waste’ being the top three concerns in 
October 2021. Younger age groups, households with children, and larger 
households were significantly more likely to report concerns about the 

food they eat. 

• Participants from larger households (4+), those in younger age groups 

(16-24), and households with a child present were more likely to be ‘food 
insecure’ across all these measures of food insecurity.  

8.12 Prices of food and non-alcoholic beverages continue to rapidly increase, with 

inflation in this category reaching 12.7% in the past 12 months according to 
the Food Foundation. This is a 2.3% increase in August compared to the 

previous month, which is the highest monthly increase in over 20 years. Prices 
in all food categories tracked by the ONS have risen over the last year, with 
the highest rise seen in oils and fat, milk, cheese, egg and meats. Kantar 

estimates the average annual food shop is set to rise by £533. 

8.13 In May 2022, the Independent Food Aid Network (IFAN) surveyed 101 of its 

organisations representing 194 independent food banks across 94 local 
authorities in England, Scotland and Wales. 93% of organisations reported an 
increase or significant increase in the need for their services since the start of 

2022. 95% of organisations reporting increases said it was due to the cost-of-
living crisis. 

8.14 Between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022, food banks in the Trussell Trust’s 
UK wide network distributed over 2.1 million emergency food parcels to people 
in crisis. This is an increase of 14% compared to the same period in 

2019/2020. 832,000 of these parcels went to children. The Trussell Trust 
reports an 81% increase in demand over a 5-year period. 

8.15  Polling conducted by Opinium for the Centre of Social Justice (CSJ) published 

in March 2022 suggests that almost 17 million people – that is, almost a third 
of the UK adult population – say that they are very worried about the cost of 

living crisis, rising to 42 per cent of those on the lowest incomes. The CSJ 
suggests that the combination of pressures on household budgets, low 
financial resilience and increasingly limited credit options is liable to create a 

perfect storm in which people are driven towards exploitation by illegal money 
lenders (loan sharks). 

8.16 The CSJ estimates that there could be as many as 1.08 million people 
borrowing from an illegal money lender, which is over 700,000 more 
individuals than those identified in the last official study in 2010. Victims 

borrow from loan sharks as a last resort after trying other sources 

• 80 per cent of victims who attempted to borrow from legal sources first 

are refused 

• 44 per cent of victims who try to borrow try a bank 

• 27 per cent of victims who try to borrow try a high-cost-short-term credit 

provider 

Page 33



  

8.17 Figures from the England Illegal Money Lending Team show that of those who 
have been exploited by loan sharks: 

• Over a third had considered suicide 

• 59% reported having a health condition 

• 30% use a food bank 

• 52% borrowed for everyday household bills and costs, over half of these 
specifically stated food and fuel as the reason for the loan. (Jan-Jun 
2022). 

8.18 Business organisations have also expressed concern regarding rising energy 
costs. The Confederation of British Industry warn that “many viable 

companies face "distress" unless urgent action is taken by the 
government…” It published survey data that showed 69% of firms expect 
energy bills to rise in the next three months, and nearly a third expect 

increases of more than 30%.  

8.19 Staffordshire Chamber of Commerce (SCC) state “this squeeze on 

businesses’ operating costs is also reflected in the latest Producer Price 
Inflation figures which show a 22.6% rise in the year to July 2022.”  

8.20 The latest quarterly Federation of Small Business (FSB) Small Business 

Index (SBI) “reports from members of four- or five-fold – or even higher – 
increases in their energy bills are coming in thick and fast, with relief on this 

front also desperately needed…Fuel (cited by 64.2%) and utilities (63.5%) 
were the most-mentioned causes of this increase in costs, both up notably 
from the first quarter (60.1% and 58.0% respectively).”  

8.21 A recent National Farmers Union (NFU) survey found that over the next two 
years, dairy farmers were most concerned about prices of feed (93%), fuel 
(91%), energy (89%) and fertiliser (88%).  

8.22 The Chamber of Commerce note that the difference between input and 
output inflation illustrates that “many firms are absorbing as much of these 

additional costs as they can. However, there is a limit to how much additional 
cost firms can absorb, and it is also limiting growth and investment.” 

8.23 Businesses are also passing on additional costs to consumers fuelling price 

inflation.  

8.24 The consequence of businesses continuing to absorb cost increases is that it 

will “stymy investment plans” (SCC): “Nearly one in three businesses 
canvassed by the organisation also said soaring gas prices are likely to 
hamper investment in transitioning to net zero emissions.” (CBI). These rising 

costs are denting farmers’ confidence to invest (NFU). 

Page 34



  

9. Current Available Support 

General Support 

9.1 The Council funds Citizens Advice (CA) (Cheadle, Leek and Staffordshire 

North) to provide: 

(i) general advice services:  

 provide an advice and support service (including money and debt 

advice) to people experiencing problems 

 work towards improving accessibility, and to encourage close 

liaison with local groups for money advice provision 

 sustain and improve the ability to prevent poverty through casework 

services, and to influence and encourage social policy legislation to 

protect those from debt. 

 in addition to debt advice and support, to provide an advice and 

support service throughout the district to people relating to housing, 

welfare benefits, legal matters, employment, relationship issues and 

support for carers, and any other issue thereafter at the discretion 

of the CA. 

(ii) homelessness prevention advice’ and 

(iii) money and debt advice for tenants or home owners at risk of losing their 

home: 

 A holistic service covering all categories of social welfare law 

covered by CA in an effort to minimise the impact of the client’s 

situation.  

 Categories of advice include; housing; homelessness; debt; 

maximising income and relationship issues, the results of which 

could have a direct bearing on the clients’ housing circumstances. 

 Types of assistance that help a client retain accommodation can 

include; completion of benefit applications and other income raising 

measures; liaising with third parties where accommodation is at risk 

i.e. Council departments, lenders, landlords and others. 

 

9.2 In spring 2022, the Council approached Support Staffordshire for assistance to 

develop a Community Vulnerability Network for Staffordshire Moorlands, which 

built upon the foundation provided by the voluntary sector response to the 

pandemic. The first meeting was held in May 2022 to bring together voluntary 

and community groups in the Staffordshire Moorlands which play a key role in 

addressing the issues that face the most vulnerable in the community, 

including loneliness and isolation; food poverty; and financial exclusion each 

quarter to: 

 

 Share information and good practice – local, regional and national; 

Page 35



  

 Develop opportunities for joint action and collaboration; 

 Report current trends being experienced by the most vulnerable people 

in the Staffordshire Moorlands; 

 Act as a sounding board for policies and plans from Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council that may impact on the most vulnerable in the 

community   

9.3 The Network brings together representatives from SMDC, Support 

Staffordshire, Beat the Cold, Biddulph Citizens Advice (Staffordshire North and 

Stoke Citizens Advice), Biddulph Food Bank, Biddulph Youth and Community 

Zone, Cheadle Citizens Advice, Cheadle Food Bank, Haregate Community 

Centre, Leek Citizens Advice, Leek Food Bank and Moorlands Home Link. 

9.4 The England Illegal Money Lending Team promotes awareness of illegal 
money lending, encourages reporting by victims, and prosecutes loan sharks 

where possible. 

9.5 Credit Unions can be seen as an alternative to illegal money lending, but this 

option has not been available within the district since the closure of the North 
Staffordshire Credit Union. This reflects a contraction of the credit union more 
generally across the UK. Credit unions are required to submit returns to the 

Prudential Regulatory Authority and the number of returns submitted has 
reduced from 188 in England in 2017 to 153 in 2021. 

Fuel Poverty 

9.6 The Government has announced a series of support measures that they are 
offering which includes: a £400 energy bill support scheme to every household 

in England; a Council Tax Rebate of £150 to every household in council tax 
band A-D; a one-off tax free payment of £650 to all those households 

receiving one of the seven main working age benefits and tax credits; and a 
one-off payment of £150 for those households receiving one of the seven main 
disability benefits.  

9.7 The District Council is part of the Staffordshire Warmer Homes Scheme 
(SWHS), which is run by Staffordshire County Council in partnership with the 

County’s district and borough councils. This scheme focuses on installing 
green heating solutions, insulating homes to make them more energy efficient 
and providing energy saving advice. Funding comes from several different 

sources including:  

 The Warm Homes Fund - Funded by Affordable Warmth Solution 
 Cadent – Fuel Poor Network Extension Scheme 

 E.ON’s Energy Company Obligation (ECO) 
 Communitas Energy 
 OFGEM’s RHI Initiative 

 Warm Homes Discount Initiative 
 E.ON 

 Green Home Grants – Department of Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy. 

 

Page 36



  

9.8 The Council augments its membership of the SWHS by commissioning 
additional support from Beat The Cold. The Council entered into a new 3-year 
service level agreement with BTC in April 2022, which replaced previous 

annual arrangements, to give certainty of delivery and to provide: 
 

 An energy advice service, which is accessible via a freephone advice 

line (0800 389 2258), a website (www.beatcold.org.uk/) and e-mail 
(www.beatcold.org.uk/contact-us/). This includes advice on home 

upgrades (affordable warmth measures and renewable technologies) and 
behaviour change (advice on fuel bills/deals, advice on resolving fuel 

debt, making best use of heating systems, and preventing crisis). 

 Extra advice and support to vulnerable residents; ensuring 
information and advice is easily accessible. Up to 30 home visits, by 

appointment, to vulnerable households. 

 Promotion of services and work with partners. This includes making 

sure that front-line staff, especially staff in health, social care and 
community voluntary settings have an increased awareness of the 

service and can assist with targeted campaigns and engaging with the 
most disadvantaged households.  

 Incorporate the affordable warmth programme as a mechanism for 

improving the health of residents across the district. BTC work 

closely with home care practitioners, other caring agencies and primary 

health care professionals to support these organisations in their visits to 
the homes of vulnerable residents. BTC also seek to work with hospital 
discharge staff to ensure that patients are not discharged to a cold home 

which could increase the possibility of re-admission.  

 Identify and advise on possible ECO (Energy Company Obligation) 

or similar projects and lead on delivery. 

9.9 The District Council is a member of the Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire Local 
Authorities' Energy Partnership, through its alliance with High Peak Borough 

Council, and benefits from support, information and communication services 
and collaborate on carbon reduction, affordable warmth and sustainable 

energy projects, sharing expertise and best practice. 

Food Poverty 

9.10 The district is fortunate that hard-working volunteers have established food 

banks and similar schemes across the district to provide support to residents 
who are in need of additional support. This includes food banks in Leek, 

Cheadle and Biddulph. The Council held regular meetings with Support 
Staffordshire, the Council and the three ‘anchor’ organisations: Homelink, 
Biddulph Youth and Community Zone, and Haregate Community Centre as 

part of its community response to the Covid pandemic. The Council also 
provided additional funding to these anchor organisations to help them 

undertake their community support role during a time when their usual source 
of income had been lost. Ensuring access to food – particularly by those who 

Page 37

http://www.beatcold.org.uk/contact-us/


  

were required to shield – was a key aspect of the pandemic response, and the 
Community Vulnerability Network seeks to build upon this approach. 

 

Businesses 
 

9.11 Business organisations are calling for national government support or national 
government levers such as reductions in VAT to address the cost of energy 
issue. The CBI also recommend the following steps to assist businesses: 

 

 Adopt and implement energy efficiency measures  

 Educate employees on the importance of energy efficiency  

 Review the structure and timing of energy contracting strategies  

 Explore demand management options  

 Make the most of your data  

 Think about your physical space  

 Build an energy-resilient business fit for the future  

 Make use of support to manage costs  

 

9.12 With regard to business support at county and district level, the focus has 
been on improving environmental performance. The Staffordshire Business 

Environment Network (SBEN) European funded Low Carbon Business 
Evolution Programme provides free energy audits and support for SMEs 
across Staffordshire and grant funding of between £2,000-£20,000 to 

implement identified solutions. Further details are available at: 
https://sben.co.uk/funded-support/lcbep/.  

 
9.13 LCBEP will close mid-2023, and applications for a free Energy Efficiency 

Review must be made by 1 December 2022. As a European Funded project 

however this project cannot assist retail businesses and it is High Street 
businesses such as cafés which may be affected locally by rising energy 

costs.  
 
9.14 NFU Energy supports its members in finding the best renewable energy 

solutions.  
 

9.15 Replacement funding for European funding is the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. 
An investment plan has been submitted to government for approval which 
contains £490,538 over three years to potentially fund “community measures 

to reduce the cost of living, including through measures to improve energy 
efficiency, and combat fuel poverty and climate change”. The outcomes for 

this are “increased take up of energy efficiency measures” and “number of 
people reached”. There are no specific funding proposals to address business 
energy costs. 

 

Page 38

https://sben.co.uk/funded-support/lcbep/


  

10 Next Steps 

10.1 The Council recognises the importance of working in partnership to monitor 
the local impacts of the energy crisis and to respond to emerging problems 

and opportunities. An initial set of actions is outlined below but the Council’s 
approach will develop over time. 

Fuel Bank Foundation 

10.2 The energy supplier npower developed Fuel Bank to identify and support 

those in fuel crisis (Appendix A). In 2017, the Fuel Bank Foundation became 
an independent registered charity and focuses on the challenges of people 
living in fuel crisis. The Foundation provides emergency financial support for 

those who cannot afford to pre-pay for their fuel or energy, and who have no 
heating or means to cook hot food when their money runs out. 

10.3 The Council has started discussions with the Fuel Bank Foundation to see 
how a Staffordshire Moorlands Fuel Bank Scheme may be funded and 
operated. The Foundation suggest a four stage model: 

 Local community-based experts identify families in fuel crisis, that is, 
living without (or shortly to do so) energy. 

 Online referral to Fuel Bank, where additional verification of need is 
completed to tease out any erroneous or excessive requests. 

 Crisis top up of electricity and / or gas meter (the Foundation responds to 
over 96% of such requests the same day) 

 Wrapped in simple and easy to access energy advice and onward 

referral where possible to reduce dependency. 

10.4 Initial modelling by the Foundation suggests that they would be able to support 

around 680 people at a cost of £15,000. 

ECO4 

10.5 Staffordshire Moorlands residents benefitted from the ECO (Energy Company 
Obligation), which is an obligation placed on the largest energy suppliers in 

Great Britain and is focused on the least energy efficient homes occupied by 
low income and vulnerable households. Draft guidance on the latest round – 
ECO4 – has recently been announced: the scheme is worth £1bn per annum 

and will run from 2022 to 2026. It adopts a “fabric first approach” and homes 
will be required to be improved by 2 SAP (Standard Assessment Procedure) 

bands F&G properties to a D and D&E properties to SAP Band C.  
 
10.6 Households may be eligible through receiving means tested benefits, living in 

the least energy efficient social housing or through ECO4 Flexible Eligibility 
(the ‘flex’ mechanism). The ‘flex’ mechanism was first introduced in 2017 to 

better target and support low income households. The four ECO4 Flex routes 
are: 

Page 39



  

 

Route 1) Household income: Households with a combined gross income 

under £31,000. 

Route 2) Proxy targeting: SAP bands E-G households that meet a 

combination of specified proxy indicators 

Route 3) NHS referrals: Households can be referred by either an NHS Trust, 

an NHS foundation trust, a general medical practitioner provider, a 
Health Board, or a Local Health Board where a person is at risk, 

and suffering from a severe and/or long-term health condition that 
falls under one of the four umbrella conditions: Cardiovascular, 

Respiratory, Immunosuppressed or Limited Mobility and could be 
severely impacted by living in a cold home 

Route 4) Bespoke targeting: Suppliers and local authorities can submit an 

application to BEIS1 where they have identified a new mechanism 
which identifies low income and vulnerable households who are not 

already eligible under the existing routes. 

10.7 Local Authorities can sign up to participate in ECO4 Flex to identify eligible 
households. To participate the Council will need to publish a new Statement of 

Intent (SoI) which outlines its intention to participate in the scheme and follow 
the scheme rules. A proposed SoI, which adopts the template provided by 

Ofgem, is provided at Appendix C (the Council could only deviate from the 
draft SoI if it intended to seek permission from BEIS to establish a bespoke 
targeting scheme (Route 4), which would be time-consuming and offer no 

obvious benefits to our local residents). Local Authorities are responsible for 
determining whether households are eligible and will also need to produce 
declarations for all households they identify. In Staffordshire Moorlands, it is 

proposed that the Council continues to work with Beat The Cold to deliver the 
scheme for the benefit of our residents. 

Advice  

10.8 As noted above, the Council commissions advice for residents through 
Citizens Advice and Beat the Cold. In addition, the Council will communicate 

appropriate messages via its website and social media. 

10.9 It is also important that individuals from the statutory and voluntary sectors 

have a good understanding of what support is available and how that support 
can be accessed. In response, the Council is working with our partners to 
collate a list of key services and contacts. 

Loan sharks  

10.10 The District Council has a long track record of working with the Illegal Money 

Lending Team (IMLT) through the Moorlands Together Community Safety 
Partnership. We will continue to work with the IMLT to help raise awareness of 
loan sharks by offering the following: 

                                                 
1
 Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 

Page 40



  

 Posters and flyers – to display in communities 

 Videos – for websites and social media  

 Website resources – to upload to partners’ websites  

 Social media resources – for Facebook and Twitter  

 Encourage reporting of loan sharks  

 Promoting the help and support available to loan shark victims (hotline 
open 24/7 over festive period)  

 Training to agencies working direct with the public during the “bite back” 
week, which takes place annually in November. The training sessions 

inform staff of the key signs to look out for when dealing with vulnerable 
individuals who may be in the grip of a loan shark. 

 We target specific areas and locations, during the “bite back” week, with 

leaflets and pop up information stands - in how to spot the signs and 
where to report, so the public is given the information first hand. 

 
10.11 The North Staffordshire Financial Inclusion Group (FIG) has been investigating 

alternative, perhaps multi-faceted, approaches to credit unions given problems 
with the viability of the credit union model. This could involve measures such 
as Community Development Financial Institutions Fund, No Interest Loan 

Schemes, Salary Finance Schemes, and support for those who have 
previously entered in to Individual Voluntary Arrangements (IVAs). We 

propose to work with the FIG to investigate options; however, it should be 
recognised that many of these options would take several years to develop 
and do not provide short-term solutions to the current crisis. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



FUEL CRISIS 
REPORT 
2022

P
age 43



As well as being a Trustee of Fuel Bank 
Foundation, she was also the Deputy 
Chief Executive and Director of Policy  
at Energy UK.  

In 2021, she received a very well-deserved 
OBE for her outstanding contribution to  
the energy industry.

She was a passionate advocate for 
consumer rights and a champion for 
driving up standards that customers 
should rightfully expect from essential 
public services. 

She was a tireless campaigner, 
championing the voices of those who  
were not heard, striving to make the  
world a fairer place. 

IN MEMORY OF AUDREY GALLACHER

As a trustee of Fuel Bank Foundation, 
Audrey was always supportive, providing 
encouragement and invaluable strategic 
insight gleaned from her years of 
experience across energy, advice and 
customer advocacy sectors. 

We are so grateful for her guidance which 
has helped Fuel Bank grow from a small 
idea into a national charity that has now 
helped over half a million people. 

However, what we will remember most 
about Audrey was her enormous capacity 
for caring about people, including those 
helped by the charity and the people  
she worked with. 

On Saturday 22nd January, one of our Trustees, Audrey Gallacher OBE, 
sadly passed away after a long battle with cancer. 

She was with us at the start of our Fuel 
Bank journey, and we will ensure that we 
carry her spirit with us as we continue the 
work that she so passionately supported. 

Thanks for everything, Audrey. 

We’ll miss you. From all of us at

 
Fuel Bank Foundation

Fuel Bank Foundation

P
age 44



INTRODUCTION
It’s hard to believe that, in 2022, some people live without 
heat, light, and power because they don’t have money to 
top up their prepayment meter. We call this Fuel Crisis. 

Fuel Bank Foundation is the only national charity whose sole focus is to 
provide immediate, tangible, meaningful and long-lasting help to people 
living in fuel crisis.

Born from an npower initiative to support households in fuel poverty  
in 2015, we became an independent registered charity the following year 
and have now supported over half a million people. 

 
Every year the demand for our services increases. But our vision is a UK 
where everyone has access to energy for heating and eating. 

We know that people rarely contact their energy supplier for help, so we 
work with selected food banks, charities, and advice agencies to identify 
those households that are genuinely in fuel crisis. 

After 6 years, we now have over 149 partners (many of whom are  
located at the heart of their communities) across the UK. We rely on  
them to spot the people who are really struggling to cope. 

The people who can’t afford to top up their prepayment meter because 
they have no money. The ones who live in cold homes and are unable to 
cook a hot meal for their family or have a shower before a job interview. 

They have fallen through every other safety net, so we provide them  
with approximately two weeks’ worth of fuel to give them some  
“breathing space”. 

The current cost-of-living crisis means that many of us are “feeling the 
squeeze” right now and wondering how we will pay our ever-increasing 
energy bills. 

But the people that we support are regularly living without energy now.  
They have already made all the savings they can in their household 
budgets and still don’t always have money to top up their prepayment 
meters. So it is terrifying to think about the impact of the forthcoming  
price rises on them.

The findings from our research will paint a picture of their lives  
and give them a voice to tell you their stories.

149
partners  
nationwide

350+
Fuel Bank 
centres

500k
people  
supported

P
age 45



Understanding the people who need our help is key. This allows us to better 
target the services we provide, and enables us to advocate on their behalf. 

PEOPLE WE SUPPORTLAST WEEK  
I DIDN’T EAT  
FOR 2 DAYS

So who do we help?

  We support those people who have to 
pay in advance for their energy.

  This means that they need to frequently 
‘top up’ their electricity and gas meters 
at their local shop, typically seven  
times per month.

  Our customers are more likely than 
average to be one of the 2 million 
people who do not have a bank 
account. Having no or limited access 
to additional money reduces the 
chance of being able to weather  
any increase in energy costs.

  We also support households that are not 
connected to the mains gas network  
and have to bulk buy fuel to heat their 
homes. They will need to pre-pay for it 
before it is delivered, and this will cost at 
least several hundred pounds.

  The people we support have multiple 
issues that require resolution. 97%  
of people we support are referred to  
us by a partner who is already attempting  
to address other material issues. Such as:

 – Income Maximisation

 – Debt Triage and Management

 – Food Poverty

 –  Energy Efficiency

 – Advice Services

P
age 46



SNAPSHOT

of people supported were having to make  
the choice between heating or eating

of people helped still face self-disconnection  
at least weekly

of people supported reported an  
improvement in their physical wellbeing  
40% in 2018

96%

49%

87%

45%

37%
65%
78%88%

of people we have supported were  
rationing hot water daily

of people who accessed our energy advice 
highlighted that it made a material difference

of people strongly agree that the removal of the 
Universal Credit (UC) £20 weekly uplift makes  
them alarmed

of people strongly agree that talk of rising energy 
prices makes them alarmed, greater than any fear 
about the removal of the UC £20 weekly uplift

of people report an improvement in mental  
well-being 

44% in 2018

14% of people we have supported were  
sacrificing hot food daily

In the 12 months before receiving a fuel voucher: 

There is real fear amongst our client group about 
what the future will bring:

After receiving a fuel voucher:

83% 68%
homes with kids homes without kids

   Households are very concerned about running out 
of money for energy. Especially where families have 

children (71% of respondents have children)

VS

URGENT ACTION IS NEEDED NOW TO STOP AN INCREASE IN THE 
NUMBER OF PEOPLE IN FUEL CRISIS.

P
age 47



THE SITUATION AS IT IS NOW
We support those people who have to pay in advance for their energy. 
This means that we provide a unique perspective on the energy market and 
the most vulnerable people in society affected by the ongoing fuel crisis.

INCREASE IN PEOPLE 
NEEDING SUPPORT 
FROM FUEL BANK 
Increase based on figures from 2020

75%

This graph starkly shows the problem felt  
by people who pre-pay for their energy.

The payments made by the Direct Debit 
customer are “smoothed” throughout the 
year and the price increases are relatively 
small. But for the prepayment customer, the 
monthly amounts they pay vary massively 
between summer and winter, as the amount 
of energy they use goes up. By this winter, 
the price rises mean that they will need to 
pay almost £150 per month more than the 
typical Direct Debit customer. 

Our clients do not have room in their 
budgets to absorb this huge increase,  
so will have to spend more days each 
month without heating or hot food.

Forecast average monthly payments
Direct Debit (DD) price cap    Pre Payment Meter (PPM) price cap

£0

£50

£100

£150

£200

£250

£300

£350

Jan
2022

M
on

th
ly

 p
ay

m
en

t

Months

Feb
2022

Mar
2022

Apr
2022

May
2022

Jun
2022

Jul
2022

Aug
2022

Sep
2022

Oct
2022

Nov
2022

Dec
2022

Jan
2023

Feb
2023

Mar
2023

£321

P
age 48



Reduction in people claiming free school meals.

The 24% annual reduction in people who receive free school meals for their children 
highlights the widening of the population of people we support. Many families do not 

qualify for support, but are still unable to routinely purchase energy.

I WOULD NOT 
EVER WANT 
MY CHILDREN 
TO KNOW THE 
STRUGGLE.

WIDER POVERTY PROBLEM
The people we support are also struggling with other issues associated 
with the increase in the cost of living today:

These include:

•  Essential household items

•  Food/groceries

•  Water

WE ESTIMATE THAT FUEL 
BANK FOUNDATION 
PROVIDES SUPPORT TO 
BETWEEN 8-12% OF PEOPLE 
WHO NEED OUR SUPPORT. 

This would mean that between 116k 
and 170k people are going without 
hot food 24/7/365. And this is  
BEFORE costs increase further. 

74% 
OF PEOPLE ARE STRUGGLING 
WITH OTHER ESSENTIAL 
HOUSEHOLD BILLS.

•  Council tax

•  Essential travel

•  Housing costs

P
age 49



As seen last year, our mental and physical wellbeing are intrinsically 
connected. Easing financial burden is crucial to providing a moment of 
relief and security in the midst of toiling on ‘survival mode.’

OUR IMPACT

MENTAL WELLBEINGPHYSICAL WELLBEING

Fuel Bank Foundation vouchers 
enable people to meet daily needs  

for example: showering, heating  
and cooking warm food.

This eases physical distress,  
creates a sense of normality and 

maintains daily routines.

This has heightened importance 
for those with physical disabilities, 

physical and mental illnesses  
and young children.

The mental toll of debt and living costs 
plays heavily on people’s minds.

Many also mention existing struggles 
with mental health, for example 

anxiety and depression, which are 
exacerbated by financial concerns 

Receiving financial help from  
Fuel Bank Foundation helps alleviate 

pressure and stress, positively 
impacting mental wellbeing.

“I have mental health issues, and if 
I didn’t have heating, it would affect 
me. I was in a wheelchair for a year  
so needed electricity to see things, 
and move around.”

“We could have more heating, more 
showers, we could have a normal life.”

“I suffer arthritis, so I need heat to 
reduce my pain. It helped with my 
mental health, and helped with  
my children, so they were warm.  
It was a godsend when I found out 
about it, I needed it then most”

“It was such a relief to know that 
I was going to be warm and have 
hot food, I was very glad.”

87% of families supported  
report an improvement to  
their physical wellbeing

88% of families supported 
report an improvement in 

mental wellbeing

P
age 50



WE WERE SO RELIEVED  
THAT THERE WAS  

SUPPORT OUT THERE

IT HELPED ME  
PRIORITISE SORTING  

THE KIDS OUT

WE WOULDN’T HAVE  
SURVIVED WITHOUT  

THE VOUCHER

I HAVEN’T BEEN THIS  
WARM FOR OVER A  
YEAR AND A HALF

HELPED MY FAMILY KEEP  
WARM AS WE RECOVERED  

FROM COVID

ELECTRICITY ALLOWED  
ME TO HAVE A SHOWER  

BEFORE A JOB INTERVIEW

HOW WE’VE HELPED PEOPLE

P
age 51



We couldn’t do what we do 

without the financial backing  

of our supporters too.  

Many organisations help  

fund Fuel Banks in their locality 

or for their clients. And we 

have been able to expand our 

reach further over 2021 from  

the generous support of:

   National Grid’s Warm Homes Fund  
 Administered by Affordable Warmth Solutions

   E.ON

    npower’s Vulnerable Customer Support Fund

    Energy Savings Trust’s Energy Redress Scheme

   Scottish Government

WE MUST THANK OUR SUPPORTERS
We have 149 partners across GB where you will find our Fuel Bank services. 
We make sure we are in the places where people in crisis turn, from local 
debt agencies and foodbanks to national high street charities. This also 
allows us to deliver services efficiently, and in a targeted way. 

Energy  
Redress  
Scheme

P
age 52



WHAT ARE OUR REQUESTS?

SO, WHO PAYS FOR THIS?

A comprehensive, Government-funded energy 
efficiency programme to improve UK housing 
stock is the only long-term, sustainable 
solution to the issue of affordability as it helps 
lift people out of fuel poverty permanently.  
But this will take time. 

Across the UK, over 6m households are 
expected to be in fuel poverty following the 
April 2022 changes to the price cap. Financial 
support is needed today to mitigate increased 
energy costs over 2022 and beyond. 

Urgent action is needed now to stop an increase in the number of people in fuel crisis. 

 This help must be: 

     Big enough to cover the forecast increases in 
average bills so that the numbers of households 
in fuel poverty don’t grow and to provide more 
support to those already in fuel poverty. 

     Automatic or simple to access. Our clients  
tend to have a lower-than-average reading 
age and are already juggling multiple issues. 
There should be no hurdles to overcome to  
get hold of the money.

    Well-targeted at those who need it most. 

We know that energy takes up a higher proportion of poorer 
households’ budgets than more affluent ones. So simply 
adding additional support costs to the bills paid by all 
customers will, in turn, increase energy prices further  
and push more people into fuel poverty.

 We propose:

     All households who are eligible for the Warm 
Home Discount should receive support – and 
not simply those who receive it. In 2020/21, it was 
estimated that 2 million households who were 
eligible missed out. 

     This money must be ring-fenced for energy - to 
provide reassurance that families will not go cold 
this winter, and beyond, and paid throughout 
periods of high energy consumption to provide 
continual support. 

     Supplemented by additional crisis financial 
support, to get targeted extra help to those 
people who need it, urgently. 

Adding the costs of supplier failure to energy bills is also not just and 
equitable: people who pre-pay for their energy have been less able to take 
advantage of low prices offered by new suppliers, so shouldn’t pay the costs 
of their failure. We think that these costs should be paid for out of general 
taxation so that those who can afford to, pay the most. 

P
age 53



Fuel Bank Foundation is a registered charity in England & Wales (1175049) and Scotland (SCO48330)

Room 10, Wombourne, Civic Centre, Gravel Hill, Wombourne, Staffordshire, WV5 9HA fbf013/28.01.22

If you would like to know more about Fuel Bank Foundation and its work and how you could support us:

And this is before energy prices increase massively in 2022!

Fuel vouchers are a great help in a crisis but should not be seen  
as a long-term solution to affordability issues.

The Government needs to urgently offer significant financial help  
to stop the numbers of fuel poor households increasing.

Visit: fuelbankfoundation.org 

Email: team@fuelbankfoundation.org 

FOR MORE INFORMATION

CONCLUSIONS
We have seen a 75% increase in demand

96% of people supported are having to make  
the choice between heating and eating

14% are sacrificing hot food daily

P
age 54



 

 

Turning down the heat 
 

  

 

How the cost of living crisis is affecting North 

Staffordshire 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

1. Introduction     p.3 

2. Background     p.4 

3. Why this hits Stoke-on-Trent hard  p.6 

4. Energy costs     p.8 

5. Rent      p.13 

6. Food and other essential expenses  p.16 

7. So what can CASNS do to help?  p.19 

8. Conclusions and recommendations p.20 

 

 

Page 56



3 

 

1. Introduction  

 

 

 

 

 

 

These are the words of a client who came to see us for the first time, never having 

needed us before, in April 2022 because she could not manage her energy bills and 

was worried sick. 

The issue dominating the lives of local people is the rising cost of living. The 

following report demonstrates how this is affecting Citizens Advice clients in North 

Staffordshire. 

The current data is drawn from those clients who have sought advice on issues 

affected by the rising cost of living in 2022, with comparisons to previous years in 

some cases and I am grateful to our national association, Citizens Advice, for pulling 

the data together and producing many of the charts. 

The case studies are of actual clients who have sought our advice, but I have 

changed their identity to protect their confidentiality. 

This report also looks at the background to the current crisis, whose roots can be 

traced back to the 2008 financial crash and subsequent credit crunch and recession, 

together with the deep-rooted poverty that affects this area. This combination of 

factors provides fertile soil for a cost of living crisis and goes some way towards 

explaining why this crisis is hitting North Staffordshire hard. 

We then look at three aspects of the crisis: energy, rent and the cost of food and 

other essentials, where we have seen significantly more clients needing help. Finally 

we make some recommendations for actions that can mitigate the worst effects of 

this crisis. 

Unfortunately there are few prospects of imminent improvement and therefore the 

response needs to be sustained if we are to avoid a local humanitarian catastrophe. 

 

Simon Harris 

Chief Executive 

Citizens Advice Staffordshire North & Stoke-on-Trent 

August 2022. 

 

“I’m 82, I lived 

through the 

war and this is 

much worse” 

 

Page 57



4 

 

2. Background  

It is misleading to believe that the 2021/22 cost of living crisis has come out of 

nowhere or is simply the result of a recent, unique sequence of events. On the 

contrary, the warning signs have been clear to see for some time. 

In August 2016/17, in preparation for a Town Hall meeting organised by the Bank of 

England in Stoke-on-Trent to look at the financial impact of the 2008 financial crash, 

credit crunch and resulting recession, we compared of our debt caseload in 2006/7 

with 2016/17. The box below summarises the main changes: 

 

 

 

 

         

This showed nearly 4 times as many cases were opened in 2016/17, but a much 

lower level of debt. Part of the explanation for this was a significant shift in the types 

of debt brought to us and in particular the growth in priority debts (mortgage, rent, 

utilities, council tax, fines – debts where non-payment can lead to the loss of 

something significant). 

In 2006/7 priority debts accounted for 26% of the total debt issues brought to us by 

clients. By 2016/17 they accounted for 59% of all the debt issues brought to us. This 

reflected a wider trend observed across the Citizens Advice network that more and 

more clients were struggling with their day to day living costs and paying for their 

essentials, and fewer were experiencing problems with consumer credit, largely due 

to the reduction in lending following the crash. 

By 2016 consumer lending was growing again, after the credit crunch, and this may 

have masked the issue of priority debts, except for the growth in clients with so-

called deficit budgets, where their reasonable outgoings exceeded their income, 

which was a growing feature of debt advice during the 2010s and has been even 

more prominent since 2020.  

 

Cases Debt Average 

2006/7 1,088 £24,563,710 £22,577 

2016/17 3,836 £16,245,353 £4,235 

 

Page 58



5 

 

In “Negative Budgets: A new perspective on poverty and household finances 

(February 2020)” Citizens Advice identified a growing trend since 2016 of clients with 

a negative budget, rising from 32% of debt client in 2016/17 to 38% in 2018/19 and 

the size of the monthly deficit rising from an average of £167 to £203. 

Both of these trends suggest that there were a growing number of people struggling 

to get by well before 2021 and the first signs of a significant increase in fuel prices. 

Alongside this other agencies highlighted the precarious financial position of many 

households. In their “Financial Lives 2020” survey, the Financial Conduct Authority 

(FCA) identified 10.7 million households with characteristics of low financial 

resilience, defined as people who “are over-indebted or have little capacity to 

withstand financial shocks. For example, they could not withstand even a £50 a 

month reduction in their income, or losing their main source of household income for 

even a week”.  

The FCA estimated this figure represented one UK household in every five. 7.8 

million of these households were indebted and 3.8 million were in financial difficulty. 

The report also looks at the level of financial buffer households had to withstand 

sudden financial shocks and concluded that 39% of adults (20.3 million) lacked 3 

months living costs in savings. They also found that: 

 5.1 million were usually overdrawn, often using an overdraft facility to pay for 

essential living expenses; 

 2.8 million had persistent credit card debts; 

 5.6 million had at least one high-cost loan; 

 3.5 million had mortgage arrears at least 4 times their annual household 

income. 

At the time the main concern was COVID-related job loss or income reduction due to 

furlough, but such persistent levels of financial insecurity create a significant cohort 

of people at risk of serious financial problems should they experience a sudden 

financial shock such as an increase in energy bills or the cost of food or petrol. 

Taken together these factors demonstrate why the recent increases in the cost of 

living are having such a damaging effect. 

Page 59



6 

 

3. Why this hits Stoke-on-Trent hard 

While this report covers the whole of North Staffordshire, the underlying problems 

are especially acute in Stoke-on-Trent. Newcastle-under-Lyme and Staffordshire 

Moorlands are each affected significantly but the scale of the problem in Stoke-on-

Trent is much greater. 

The Government’s latest figures on fuel poverty, published in April 20211 showed 

that with 21.8% of households classed as fuel poor, Stoke-on-Trent had the second 

highest rate in the country after Barking and Dagenham.  

Newcastle-under-Lyme had 18.0% of households classed as fuel poor and 

Staffordshire Moorlands 16.2%, significantly lower than Stoke but still above the 

Staffordshire-wide figure of 15%. 

The new LILEE2 assessment looks at the energy efficiency of the properties in an 

area and the residual income left once an amount required to adequately heat a 

home is taken into account. The relative poverty of Stoke-on-Trent along with the 

poor energy efficiency of many of the city’s properties combine to make the city 

especially vulnerable to spikes in energy prices. 

The problem is particularly acute in wards such as Hanley Park and Shelton (35% of 

households are fuel poor), Etruria and Hanley and then the main social housing 

estates such as Abbey Hulton and Townsend, Bentilee and Ubberley, Meir South 

and Trent Vale and Springfields3. 

In July 2022 the claimant count in Stoke-on-Trent was 8,530 people, or 5.3% of the 

adult population, claiming out of work benefits and required to look for work. While 

lower than at its peak, it is still 16.5% above the pre-pandemic levels and places 

Stoke 31st out of 309 Districts and thus in the top 10% of local authorities. In 

Newcastle the figures were 2,215 and 2.7%, while in the Moorlands it was 1,095 and 

1.9%. 

29,875 people in Stoke-on-Trent are receiving Universal Credit, the principal means-

tested benefit for working age people. This is a rate of 18.7% of people and places 

Stoke-on-Trent 36th out of 309 Districts.4 The figure is significantly lower in both 

Newcastle and the Moorlands. 

Despite having the 51st highest rate of Pension Credit claimants, it is still estimated 

that some £10.3 million of Pension Credit is unclaimed by approximately 2,500 

people, each of whom will be receiving up to £80 per week less than Parliament says 

they need to live on, which would make a crucial difference in the current climate. In 

addition to this, they will miss out on those payments, including the £650 cost of 

living payment for which receiving Pension Credit is one of the qualifying criteria. 

                                            
1 Sub-regional fuel poverty data 2021, published on behalf of BEIS by the ONS.  
2 LILEE = Low Income Low Energy Efficiency 
3 Fuel Poverty note 2021 – Steven Johnston, Stoke-on-Trent City Council 
4 Figures from ONS via NOMIS, and the DEP’s Stat-Xplore, collated by Steven Johnston, Stoke-on-

Trent City Council, for the August Universal Credit and Claimant County Summary 

Page 60



7 

 

Similarly, it is estimated just under 2,000 people may be missing out on Universal 

Credit, another qualifying benefit for cost of living payments, and at an average of 

£77 a week. Money that could make a huge difference to household budgets. 

A smaller number of people are estimated to be missing out on disability benefits, 

but some 300 individuals will be significantly worse off as Attendance Allowance, 

Disability Living Allowance and Personal Independence Payments not only provide 

valuable extra income (roughly £77 per week per recipient) but also act as qualifying 

benefits to other help and support including a £150 cost of living payment.5 

Poor energy efficiency, low wages (in 2021 wages in Stoke-on-Trent were 85% of 

the GB average)6 and high levels of benefit reliance make Stoke-on-Trent especially 

vulnerable to the cost of living crisis. 

                                            
5 Unclaimed & Underclaimed Benefits estimate Stoke-on-Trent July 2022 – Steve Johnston Stoke-on-

Trent City Council, for the Stoke-on-Trent Hardship Commission. 
6 NOMIS.at nomisweb.co.uk  

Page 61



8 

 

4. Energy costs 

Much attention has rightly been focused on the rises in domestic energy bills since 

2020/21, as indicated by movements in Ofgem’s price cap. The price cap is a 

mechanism to prevent suppliers charging excessive amounts for domestic energy 

while ensuring that bills reflect the true cost of supplying gas and electricity to 

households. 

Figure 1 below shows the movements in the price cap. The blue bars represent the 

figure quoted for the cost of the annual usage by a typical user at the price capped 

standard variable tariff. The purple bar represents the recently announced October 

2022 figure. The orange bars are the latest forecasts by Cornwall Insight for how the 

price cap might rise from January 2023 through the next 4 quarters, assuming 

Ofgem switch to quarterly adjustments to the price cap. 

Figure 1 

 

The green columns represent the value of the support packages announced prior to 

August 2022 by the Government.  

The first shows the amount that a disabled pensioner living on means-tested benefits 

in a Council Tax band A-D property would receive, the second shows what someone 

living in a band A-D property on means-tested benefits would receive. The third is 

the amounts an ordinary household living in a band A-D property will receive. 

From April to October 2021 the price cap was set so a typical user would be paying 

£1,042 p.a. for their gas and electricity under a dual fuel deal. By April 2022 this had 

increased to £1,971. The recently announced figure for October 2022 has risen from 

a forecast £2,600 p.a. to £3,549 p.a. A single person receiving UC will receive 

Page 62



9 

 

£3,183.72 if they are under 25 and £4,018.92 if they are over 25, leaving next to 

nothing each month to live on once their fuel costs have been met. 

The increase from April 2021 to April 2022 is the equivalent of an extra £17.86 p.w. 

The basic package of support would provide just £10.58 p.w. towards that.  

When the average bill rises to £3,549 in October 2022 then the increase from April 

2021 will be £47.19 a week and even the support package for people on means-

tested benefits will only amount to £23.08 p.w. leaving a shortfall of £24.11 a week or 

£104.48 p.c.m. or £1,253.84 p.a. or nearly 30% more than the total annual bill for a 

typical user in the summer of 2020. 

Cornwall Insights suggest that the price cap may rise further in the new year, raising 

this typical cost to over six times what it was in winter 2020/21. The consequences of 

this will be catastrophic for households already struggling to cope with the current 

costs as well as increasing costs of food, travel and other items at a time when 

incomes and benefits are rising at levels well below inflation. 

Concern amongst our clients with the cost of energy has been evident for over a 

year. Figure 2 below shows the monthly totals for various energy related issues 

brought to us by clients, between April 2021 and January 2022. 

 

Figure 2:  Energy Related enquiries April 2021 to January 2022 

 

The evident spike in September followed the announcement of the increase in the 

price cap to take effect in October 2021 and the turmoil in the domestic energy 

market caused by the failure of around 30 suppliers, as clients desperately sought 

advice on how to mitigate the effects of both. 

Page 63



10 

 

At this time we also issued more fuel vouchers to clients unable to meet their fuel 

costs between January and March 2022 than in the previous nine months. 

Figure 3 shows the cumulative number of clients who had sought advice on energy 

issues in each of the past 3 years. 

The blue line, representing 2022, had already outstripped each of the three previous 

year’s 12 month totals by the end of July and we are forecasting to advise at least 

double the number of clients on energy issues by the end of the year. 

Given the increases in the price cap due in October and January and the effect of 

the autumn and winter even that may still be a significant underestimate. 

Figure 3 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Wendy” is a 56 and lives alone in a private rented property. She is a victim of 

domestic abuse. She has a number of chronic health issues, is in serious debt and 

is extremely worried about how she will cope with rising fuel bills. 

“Wendy’s” situation was complicated and we had to break it down into its 

component parts to make them manageable individually. First of all we helped her 

claim for UC with limited capability for work and Personal Independence Payments. 

Eventually, after a mandatory reconsideration for the UC, she was successful in that 

claim and her PIP was paid at the higher rate, significantly increasing her income. 

We advised “Wendy” on energy efficiency measures to reduce her energy usage 

and advised on the Warm Homes discount. We also advised on getting a water 

meter fitted as well as making applications to charitable funds to cover other 

outstanding bills and costs. We also arranged affordable payments for her priorities. 

Overall “Wendy” was £950 a month better off after she had been to see us from a 

range of measures. She also received £9,000 in backdated benefit and £1,450 

towards her fuel debt and £380 worth of energy efficiency measures. All of which 

will provide some help with the rising cost of living 

Page 64



11 

 

Figure 4 below represents similar data: the number of clients with queries about 

domestic energy, from January 2019 through to July 2022. This chart clearly shows 

the upward trend over time. Although demand may have tailed off in the summer, 

and normally we would expect this fall to be greater, it is clear that this is still a major 

concern for many people and will only increase later in the year. 

Figure 4 

 

 

Figure 5 

 

Given the increase in the energy cap due to come into force in October we expect 

these figures to rise again and probably exceed the levels we witnessed in March 

Page 65



12 

 

and April 2022. Increases in the price cap appear now to be accompanied by spikes 

in the number of queries about energy supplies. 

Figure 5, above, repeats the exercise but for energy debt. This is where the client is 

in arrears already with their energy and often facing recovery action by their supplier. 

If this has not started when they visit us then there is a strong possibility it will be 

about to. 

Again the underlying trend is upwards, with no appreciable tailing off in the summer. 

In fact the longer this crisis persists the greater this problem will become. It is likely 

that as prices rise then the number of clients unable to meet these costs by cutting 

back elsewhere or cutting back on usage and then getting into debt will increase 

significantly. 

 

 

 

 

 

“Graham” is 67 years old and lives alone. He has a number of chronic health 

issues and disabilities. He has been struggling with his bills for some time 

and desperate not to get into debt he has switched off his gas boiler. 

Now he has no heating and no hot water, so he is no longer able to bathe. 

He is also sleeping downstairs on his settee to save energy. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



13 

 

5. Rent  

A growing issue, since the pandemic has been clients struggling to pay the rent. This 

is partly due to the general squeeze on household budgets and partly due to an 

emerging trend we have witnessed recently, where private landlords are now 

increasing rents to add further pressure on hard pressed households. 

These increases are quite legal but in many of the most challenging cases they are 

increasing the rent significantly above the Local Housing Allowance (LHA)7 level so 

that the gap between the rent and the available support is growing. 

Such is the state of the local housing market that private sector rents have been 

above the LHA ceiling for many years. However, in most cases the gap was 

affordable. This is becoming less and less the case. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As well as adding significant financial burden to hard pressed families, such rent 

increases can threaten their security of tenure. The example above is one where if 

the shortfall is not made up the tenant and his daughter could become homeless or 

they will have to cut back on other, probably essential expenditure. 

 

                                            
7 Local Housing Allowance is the main form of financial support for private tenants. It is calculated with 

reference to a ceiling, based on rents in the local ‘broad market rent area’, above which support will 

not be paid, but above which the landlord can charge rent. 

“Joe” lives in a 3 bed property with his daughter. He pays £450 p.c.m rent, 

works part-time and claims Universal Credit. His landlord has recently given 

notice that he will be increasing the rent to £600 p.c.m. “Joe” has objected 

and applied to a rent tribunal for a determination. Unfortunately it is likely that 

£600 will be deemed to be a fair market rent. 

Although the LHA limit for a 3 bed property is £550 p.c.m. because “Joe” is 

deemed to be under-occupying the property his LHA is limited to £425 p.c.m. 

While he can make up the £25 p.c.m. shortfall he can’t afford £175 p.c.m. 

extra and is now at risk of homelessness. 

“Yousef” has lived in 3 bedroom private rented property with his wife and 3 

children since 2015.  Throughout the period the rent has always been £500 a 

month.  The landlord gave notice to increase rent to £600 a month.  “Yousef” 

refused to accept the rent increase as he said it was unaffordable and so the 

landlord has issued a section 21 notice seeking possession and the family is 

now at risk of homelessness.   

With an assured shorthold tenancy the landlord is entitled to charge a market 

rent and it is likely that £600 a month would be an acceptable market rent but 

the local housing allowance for a 3 bedroom property is only £550 a month.  

“Yousef” is currently not in receipt of benefits as he runs his own business. 

He has been advised to apply for Universal Credit to see if he qualifies. 

 

Page 67



14 

 

The risk to security of tenure is clearly shown in “Yousef’s” case study above. 

Because the tenant has refused to accept the rent increase and the tenancy is 

beyond the end of the shorthold period, the landlord can issue a section 21 notice to 

terminate the tenancy without needing to give a reason. 

The Government has committed to amend the law to remove so-called ‘no-fault’ 

evictions but has yet to confirm when this will happen. In the meantime, as the 

private rental market recovers following the pandemic, there is a risk that landlords 

will seize the opportunity to raise rents and evict tenants who do not accept a new 

rent, before re-letting to a new tenant at the higher rent.  

All of this is entirely legal, even if it puts further pressure on hard-pressed family 

budgets. 

Figure 6 

 

The chart above shows that queries about homelessness, especially threatened 

homelessness (the orange line), have been climbing steadily since the pandemic as 

landlords resume recovery action and the courts reopen. We anticipate this trend 

continuing and worsening as the cost of living crisis deepens. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Janice” is a council tenant, single parent with one dependent child. She receives 

Universal Credit and has rent arrears of £1,670. She has a spare bedroom in her 

house and the Universal Credit rent element has been reduced by 14%. This has 

contributed to the arrears situation. 

When we advised on an affordable weekly budget she had £32.50 available to 

offer towards those arrears. However, her landlord has applied to the DWP for an 

amount to be paid directly to them from “Janice’s” UC. The standard 20% 

deduction will amount to £183 p.c.m or £42 p.w. This is more than she can afford 

and will leave her unable to contribute towards her Council Tax arrears or cover 

her essential expenses. 

 

 

 

Page 68



15 

 

 

The situation for social housing tenants is different but also concerning. Fewer 

clients living in social housing are seeking advice about rent arrears than we would 

expect. One reason for this is that social landlords whose tenants are in receipt of 

Universal Credit are collecting the arrears and ongoing rent direct from UC. While 

this ensures that the arrears do not increase and the rent is paid it does leave 

significantly less money per week available for other expenses. 

One emerging and worrying trend we have had reported to us, at a recent Wider 

Welfare Reform Group meeting, is social housing tenants who had been paying their 

rent by direct debit, either cancelling those direct debits because they are no longer 

affordable, or seeing those direct debits fail due to insufficient funds in their bank 

account. 

By and large these are tenants who in normal circumstances are able to pay their 

rent regularly, have no major financial problems and frequently are not on Universal 

Credit. If this trend continues then we could see greater demand for advice on rent 

arrears and security of tenure. 

Page 69



16 

 

6. Food and other essential expenses 

The cost of living crisis has been characterised often as a choice between heating 

and eating. For some of our clients it has already gone beyond that as they can no 

longer afford either. 

This has been reflected in the queries about foodbank vouchers and emergency 

payments, both of which have increased significantly.  

In December 2021 we were allocated £63,000 from the Household Support Fund by 

Stoke-on-Trent City Council to distribute to families struggling to meet their fuel 

costs. This was then given out as either fuel vouchers redeemable to top up pre-

payment meters or as cash grants to energy suppliers. By the end of June we had 

distributed £55,000 of this money and in July we were allocated another £50,000. 

While an invaluable stopgap to avert crises, such emergency payments are not a 

long-term or sustainable solution to the underlying problem of unaffordable energy or 

food costs.  

Figure 7 shows the number of people who approached us for food or fuel bank 

vouchers or other emergency payments between January and July and compares it 

with the previous three years 

Figure 7 

 

Demand for foodbank vouchers and other local support has been strong for some 

time, but it has increased since January and we are on track at current rates to 

provide this help to an additional 20% of clients this year compared to previous 

years. 

However, if as we expect, demand increases during the autumn and early winter 

then we will clearly exceed those predictions. 

Page 70



17 

 

Figure 8 

 

 

Figure 8 shows a longer term trend for queries about this support and how they often 

respond to seasonal factors. However, it is clear that there was a marked increase in 

the demand for foodbank vouchers following the announcement of the energy price 

cap increase in August 2021 and again following the announcement of the April 2022 

increase. We expect it to continue to grow in the coming months. 

The following charts show who is approaching us for help from foodbanks. 

Age – most clients are in the 25 – 54 age brackets. Relatively few older people 

approach us for help from foodbanks. 

Figure 9 

 

Housing Tenure – not surprisingly tenants feature prominently among the clients we 

have referred to the city’s foodbanks. Since February there has been a notable 

increase in the number of social housing tenants, although there was a spike in 

private tenants in March 2022. Owner occupiers are relatively rare in this group but 

occasionally we do see them. 

As interest rates rise and with them mortgage costs it is likely that we will see an 

increase in owner occupiers needing this type of support. 

 

Page 71



18 

 

Figure 10 

 

 

Household type – single people remain the most frequent group requesting 

foodbank referrals, usually because they receive the lowest levels of benefits. Single 

parents and couples with children also frequently need to use foodbanks. 

Figure 11 

 

Health and Disability – an adequate diet is essential to maintain good health. It is 

concerning that clients who report a disability or long term health condition 

Figure 12 

 

(usually one in three of our clients) are so prominent among the clients we refer to 

foodbanks. 

Page 72



19 

 

7. So what can CASNS do to help? 

Our approach has been three-pronged. We aim to: 

 Maximise people’s income; 

 Minimise their unnecessary spending; and 

 Optimise their energy use. 

Maximising income – we have recognised that ensuring local people claim all the 

social security benefits and tax credits that they are entitled to is vital ad this has 

been a priority of ours for over 30 years. 

In the current situation it is even more important both to ensure people can cope with 

rising costs and access the government support that is available. People receiving 

means-tested benefits are entitled to a £650 cost of living payment, paid in July and 

the autumn. We know that locally Pension Credit is hugely under-claimed and we will 

do what we can to encourage those entitled to claim it.  

Personal Independence Payments and Attendance Allowance are less under-

claimed but there are still disabled people missing out on these benefits and thus will 

miss out on  the £150 Disability Cost of Living payment due in September. 

Alongside this we work hard to ensure those who need it can access the emergency 

and crisis support available such as foodbank referrals, fuel vouchers and the 

household support fund, as well as other charitable support. 

Minimising unnecessary spending – this is a staple part of debt advice and 

increasingly the money management support we provide. It involves agreeing a 

sensible monthly or weekly budget with clients, to ensure they can cover their 

essential expenses. This may involve looking at subscriptions and other spending 

that may not be essential and can be stopped. 

It also involves looking at better deals on essential items, such as eligibility for social 

tariffs for broadband services and money saving around water and other similar 

costs. 

Optimising energy use – before October 2021 a large part of this was helping 

clients find a better deal on their gas and electricity accounts. However, since then 

there has been no effective price competition in the domestic energy market and this 

area of work has evaporated. 

Instead we have focused on energy saving measures, including referring clients to 

other services who can supply and fit physical improvements to properties, advising 

on simple changes clients can make to reduce their energy use, advising on the 

support clients can access through their energy supplier and on the schemes 

available such as the Warm Homes Discount and Priority Service Register. 

 

 

Page 73



20 

 

 

8. Conclusions and Recommendations 

As this report demonstrates the Cost of Living Crisis is a multi-faceted issue. While 

there has been much attention focused on energy bills, rising inflation increasing the 

cost of food and other essential items and rising rents add further pressure to 

household budgets already stretched to breaking point. Each issue would be serious 

enough on their own, but when they come together the impact is massive. 

This is clearly an issue of major concern for local people many of whom are 

struggling to cope with the rising cost of energy. We have spoken to many clients 

who have already switched off their heating as they cannot afford to pay their bills 

and are extremely anxious about switching it on a again as the weather cools. And 

that was before the latest announcement from Ofgem. 

Add to that the pre-existing circumstances of a poor city, with many sub-standard 

and thermally inefficient homes, inflation at levels not seen for fifty years and rising 

interest rates and it is hard to see how many people in the city will cope in the 

coming months without major improvements in the support available and major 

changes to the domestic energy market. 

There is only so much we can do to help people: we can maximise their income, help 

them make their money go further and share advice and tips on improving their 

energy usage but if that sometimes feels like building sandcastles in the face of a 

tsunami then that is because the scale of the problem is so huge. 

The current support provided by government is welcome but as it is based on 

estimates of cost increases made earlier in the year it has been overtaken by the 

speed at which the problem has grown. The piecemeal nature of this support with 

five different payments, two of which are universal and three targeted, one of which 

is made in two instalments and one in six, means it is no wonder many people are 

confused. But even the maximum available support of £1,650 will be dwarfed by the 

scale of the increase in fuel bills, for the few entitled to all the payments, with nothing 

left to pay the increasing costs of food and other essentials. 

This is clearly a crisis as serious and, potentially, as deadly as COVID, that threatens 

the health and welfare of many people across North Staffordshire and beyond. The 

response therefore needs to be bold and proportionate. 

The measures we are proposing will be expensive. Not implementing them will also 

be expensive, probably more so, with additional costs falling on the NHS, social care 

and other public services. The choice is therefore not whether or not additional 

money is spent, but how much, when and where. 

 

 

 

Page 74



21 

 

Therefore we would recommend: 

1. An immediate cost of living supplement of £40 per week paid to every 

household receiving Universal Credit or Pension Credit; 

2. An increase equal to CPI in the Local Housing Allowance; 

3. The introduction of a social tariff for vulnerable customers’ domestic energy 

bills that is set on a sliding scale linked to means-tested benefits and focuses 

the cost on unit charges rather than the standing charge; 

4. The continuation of locally distributed crisis funds as a safety net for those 

customers who risk losing their supplies despite the measures listed above; 

5. Investment of funding in targeted benefit take up campaigns to help boost  

incomes, focusing on means-tested and disability benefits; 

6. Increased investment in renewable energy;  

7. Increased investment in improving the thermal efficiency of the local housing 

stock. 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



    

 

V0.1 

Statement of Intent for ECO4 

 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council ECO4 Flexible Eligibility Statement of Intent 

Local Authority name: Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

Publication Date: XX/XX/XXXX 

Version number: V.1 

Publication on web site: www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

This statement sets out XXXXXX Council’s flexible eligibility criteria for the Energy Company 

Obligation (ECO4) scheme from April 2022 – March 2026.  

The ECO4 scheme will focus on supporting low income and vulnerable households. The 

scheme will improve the least energy efficient homes helping to meet the Government’s fuel 

poverty and net zero commitments. 

The flexible approach for Local Authorities (LAs) to identifying fuel poor and vulnerable 

households who may benefit from heating and energy saving measures is referred to as 

“ECO4 Flex”.  

The Council welcomes the introduction of the ECO4 Flex eligibility routes as it helps the 

Council achieve its plans to improve the homes of those in fuel poverty or vulnerable to the 

cold. 

The Council is publishing this Statement of Intent (SoI), on the XX/XX/XXXX to confirm that 

each of the households declared will adhere to at least one of the four available routes 

outlined below: 

 

Route 1: SAP bands D-G households with an income less than £31,000. This cap applies 

irrespective of the property size, composition, or region. 

 

Route 2: SAP bands E-G households that meet a combination of two of the following proxies: 

 

Page 77

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


 

2 

 

Proxy 1) Homes in England in Lower-layer Super Output Area 1-3 (LSOA)1, or 

homes in Welsh provision LSOA 1-3 on the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 

20192, or the Index of Multiple Deprivation for 2020, published by the Scottish 

Government3 

Proxy 2) Householders receiving a Council Tax rebate (rebates based on low 

income only, excludes single person rebates). 

Proxy 3) Householders vulnerable to living in a cold home as identified in the 

National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) Guidance. Only one from 

the list can be used, excludes the proxy ‘low income’.  

Proxy 4) A householder receiving free school meals due to low-income. 

Proxy 5) A householder supported by a LA run scheme, that has been named and 

described by the LA as supporting low income and vulnerable households for the 

purposes of NICE Guideline. 

Proxy 6) A household referred to the LA for support by their energy supplier or 

Citizen's Advice or Citizen’s Advice Scotland, because they have been identified as 

struggling to pay their electricity and gas bills.  

* Note proxies 1 and 5 cannot be used together. 

 

Route 3: SAP bands D-G households that have been identified by their doctor or GP as low-

income and vulnerable, with an occupant whose health conditions may be impacted further by 

living in a cold home. These health conditions may be cardiovascular, respiratory, 

immunosuppressed, or limited mobility related. 

 

This is because the Council has identified a positive correlation between households who 

suffer from long-term health conditions and living off a low-income, with living in poorly 

insulated homes. 

 

Route 4: SAP band D-G households that are referred under Route 4: Bespoke Targeting. 

Suppliers and LAs can submit an application to BEIS where they have identified a low income 

and vulnerable household, who are not already eligible under the exiting routes. 

  

                                        

 

 

1 The English Indices of Deprivation 2019 (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
2 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (full Index update with ranks): 2019 | GOV.WALES  
3 Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation 2020 - gov.scot (www.gov.scot) 

Page 78

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/835115/IoD2019_Statistical_Release.pdf
https://gov.wales/welsh-index-multiple-deprivation-full-index-update-ranks-2019
https://www.gov.scot/collections/scottish-index-of-multiple-deprivation-2020/


 

3 

 

Declaration and evidence check confirmation 

 

All potentially eligible households should apply through XXXXXX Council or one of their 

approved ECO installers to ensure that they can either benefit from the scheme or be 

assessed for eligibility under any other relevant programme. 

The officer below will be responsible for checking and verifying declarations and associated 

evidence submitted on behalf of the local authority: 

 

Name: XXXX XXXX 

Job Title: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX 

Telephone: XXXXX XXXXXX 

Email: XXXXXX@XXXXX.gov.uk 

 

 

CEO or dedicated responsible person mandatory signature 

 

The XXXXXX Council will administer the scheme according to BEIS’ ECO4 Order and will 

identify eligible households via Ofgem’s application process. The CEO of the Council will 

oversee the process of identifying eligible households under ECO4 Flex. 

The eligibility information will be stored securely in line with the Council’s data protection 

policy, Information Commissioner’s Office Data Sharing Code, and BEIS guidance.  

 

Signature: XXXXXX 

Name: XXXX XXXX 

Job Title: CEO/ dedicated responsible person 

Date of signature: XX/XX/XXXX 

 

For any general enquires relating to this SoI, please contact XXXXXX@XXXXX.gov.uk. 

 

 

 

 

Page 79

mailto:XXXXXX@XXXXX.gov.uk
mailto:XXXXXX@XXXXX.gov.uk


 

4 

 

Guidance – ECO4 Flex Statement of Intent template 

 

 

  

Page 80



 

5 

 

Guidance – ECO4 Flex Statement of Intent template 

 

Eligible Referral Routes

Page 81



 

6 

 

Guidance – ECO4 Flex Statement of Intent template 

 

 

  

Eligibility via Local Authority declaration: 

 LAs can use any of the routes and proxies detailed above, providing they have 

published a SoI on their website.  

 The household that they have identified must be a private domestic premises for which 

the pre-project SAP band is D, E, F or G for owner-occupied homes, or SAP bands E, F 

or G for private rented sector households and properties receiving measures under 

Route 2.  

  
Statement of Intent  

 SoIs will only be valid if it states an LA’s intent to participate in ECO4 Flex and 

contains commitment that the signing LA officer has checked and verified that 

declarations will be issued for households which match the criteria for the SoI.  

  

 From 1st July, a new SoI will be required from LAs across GB to state their intent to 

participate in ECO4 Flex and a commitment that the signing LA officer will check and 

verify that declarations will be issued for households that match the criteria in the SoI. 

As with ECO3 SoIs, these would need to be signed by the CEO or dedicated 

responsible person.  

  
 For ECO4, OFGEM propose that the SoI template is simplified to include the following 

information:  

a) Name of the LA  

b) LA they are acting on behalf of (if relevant)  

Page 82



 

7 

 

Guidance – ECO4 Flex Statement of Intent template 

 

c) Date of publication  

d) Version number  

e) A statement to outline whether all or which of the four eligible routes outlined 

in the ECO4 Order the LA will use to identify households. The statement must 

also outline that a dedicated LA officer will check and verify declarations and 

associated evidence submitted.  

f) A signature, (or co-signature) from the CEO or dedicated responsible person to 

confirm the above.  

  

 This will  be a standardised SoI template that the LA would publish on their website when they decide to 

participate in ECO4 Flex. OFGEM will  publish a standard template separately alongside their ECO4 Flex 
Administration Guidance. This SoI will  be published ahead of notifying declarations.  

  
Notification of LA / DA declarations to Ofgem 

 OFGEM require LAs and Devolved Administrations (DAs), to submit declaration 

notifications in the form of a CSV file to Ofgem. Declarations will be on a per property 

basis so that, unlike ECO3, a declaration number is unique to one property.  

  

 OFGEM propose that the declaration template includes the following fields:  
1) LA Declaration Unique Reference Number (URN),  
2) Referral made on behalf of another LA (optional),  
3) Referral Route:  

- Route 1, Low Income households,  
- Route 2, Proxy Targeting,  
- Route 3, NHS Referral or  
- Route 4, Bespokes Targeting (BEIS Panel).  

4) Route 2 or Route 3 proxies (only if relevant),  
5) Address details – street name/postcode,  
6) LA area (A local authority can provide declarations for households not within its administrative area . 

For example, this includes where a LA delegates some functions to another LA, where the LA providing 

the service is best placed to make a determination of the eligibil ity of a household. In such situations all 
relevant LAs must co-sign the SoI to confirm which LAs are operating on behalf of others. This must also 
be recorded on the LA declaration.) 

7) Date of householder eligibility,  
8) Statement of Intent publication date,  
9) Statement of Intent l ink.  

  
 OFGEM expects both LAs and DAs to notify them of declarations ahead of the measure 

being delivered.  

  
 Declarations must be issued no earlier than 12 months before the date on which the 

project started at the premises and no later than the date on which the project 

started.  

  
Interim declaration process (submissions via email) 

 For the beginning of the ECO4 Flex scheme, Local Authorities and Devolved 

Administrations should provide Ofgem with their declaration notification via email: 

ECO4Flex@ofgem.gov.uk.  

 

Page 83

mailto:ECO4Flex@ofgem.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	6 Minutes from the last meeting of the Police, Fire and Crime Panel.
	8 Work Programme
	10 Werrington Library & Wellbeing Centre (presentation) - Wendy Sandbrook, Wellbeing Coordinator. (6.45pm)
	WERRINGTON COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER GROUP
	Background       
	From then to today
	How we operate
	Developing the Wellbeing Programme
	Wellbeing Programme content
	Highlights
	Fin�����Finally…�1. Get in touch�2. Come and visit�3. Please help yourself to a copy of our Summer 2022 Village Life     Magazine, September Wellbeing Programme and the list of activities held to date������

	11 Energy Crisis - David Smith, Head of Communities and Climate Change (7.15pm)
	Appendix A for Energy Crisis
	Appendix B for Energy Crisis
	Appendix C for Energy Crisis


